
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Schools Forum 
 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 25 March 2014 
5.00 pm 

The Randolph Beresford Early Years Centre,  
Australia Road, London W12 7PH 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Schools Academies Non-schools 

Michael Pettavel 
Gill Del Bravo 
Phil Cross (Chairman) 
Jude Ragan 
 

David McFadden  
Sally Whyte   
 

Dennis Charman 
Dave McNamara 
Ian Heggs  
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Craig Bowdery 

Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 ( : 020 8756 2278 
 E-mail: craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

24 March 2014 
 

 

 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Schools Forum 
Agenda 

 
25 March 2014 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  1 - 4 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20th January 2014.  
 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. SCHOOL ORGANISATION AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2014  5 - 36 

 A report from the Cabinet Member for Education and the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services, to be considered by the Cabinet on 7th 
April 2014, is attached with the proposed Strategy appended 
 

 

4. SCHOOL FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS  37 - 61 

 To receive a report setting out the school funding arrangements for 
2014/15  
 

 

5. TWO YEAR OLD PROGRAMME UPDATE  62 - 65 

 A report from the Tri-borough Executive Director of Children's Services 
is attached  
 

 

6. FREE SCHOOL MEALS - KEY STAGE 1  66 - 67 

 A report from the Head of Resources updating on the expansion of Free 
School Meals for Key Stage 1 pupils is attached  
 

 

7. SCHOOL AUDIT PROGRAMME  68 - 82 

 A report on the school audit programme for 2014/15 from the Tri-
Borough Director of Finance is attached 
 

 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 It is proposed that the next meeting take place at 2pm on Monday 16th 
June 2014.  
 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Schools Forum 
Minutes 

 

Monday 20 January 2014 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Schools: Gill Del Bravo and Micheal Pettavel 
 
Academies:  Gary Kymaston, David McFadden and Bernie Peploe 
 
Non Schools:  Dennis Charman, Dave McNamara and Andy Rennison  
 
Officers:  Craig Bowdery (Principal Committee Coordnator), Alison Farmer (Tri-
Borough Assistant Director for SEN), Andy Inett (Relationship Manager, Schools), 
and Remi Oladapo (3BM) 
 

 
13. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 
RESOLVED –  
The minutes of the meeting held on 14th October 2013 were approved as a 
correct record.  
 
 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Jude Ragan, Sally Whyte and Phil 
Cross.  
 
 

15. SCHOOLS FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2014/15  
 
The Forum received a report from Andy Rennison presenting the school 
funding arrangements and DSG allocations for 2014/15. Andy also tabled a 
detailed analysis of allocations featuring a school-by-school breakdown.  
 
Andy highlighted that at its last meeting, the Forum agreed to move 
£1.3million funding from the High Needs Block to the Schools Block to fund 
SEN. However he noted that the strategy for higher needs was still being 
developed, with a risk that costs for out of borough placements would need to 
be met. He therefore proposed that the funding be returned to the High Needs 
Block. The Forum was also informed that the intention was to align the three 
Tri-Borough authorities to ensure the thresholds were consistent for allocation 
of funds from the High Needs Block. In response to question regarding the 
impact on schools, Andy explained that schools with high numbers of Free 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

School Meals (FSM) would likely lose some funding, while those with high 
numbers of English as Additional Language (EAL) would gain funding. In 
either instance the sums were not significant.  
 
The Forum discussed the potential impact of changes in the benefit system 
and the caps that had been introduced. Members asked whether there was 
any evidence of increased demand for the funding for two year olds in low 
income households. Officers reported that they had not observed any trends 
and explained that they used the Primary applications as a data source. The 
experience of the Forum had been that there had been increased mobility 
with families moving further away and that punctuality had been affected, but 
the pupils remained on the roll. Officers explained that in Westminster families 
with SEN children had to consult the authority before moving, and if they 
moved they were prioritised to move back into the borough. It was agreed that 
further work on the issue was required and would be reported to a future 
meeting.  
 
Members discussed the allocation of funding for FSM and how this was 
affected by the guidance that all KS1 children should receive a meal. It was 
explained that officers were still awaiting guidance from the Education 
Funding Agency (EFA) on this matter. The Forum also discussed the EAL 
funding and questioned how it would be allocated. Officers explained that the 
EFA had provided the funding and they determined how it would be allocated. 
It was agreed that the impact of the changes to EAL funding would be 
reported to the March meeting of the Forum.  

Action: Andy Rennison  
 
It was highlighted that as early years providers did not receive the DSG, many 
felt that their funding was vulnerable. Officers gave assurances that their 
funding was not at risk and explained that funding would be set for the 
duration of 2014/15.  
 
The Forum noted the issues raised by Jude Ragan in her absence. The first 
issue related to uncertainty and delays in payment of top-up funding. Alison 
Farmer explained that she was aware of the issue and would be contacting 
Jude directly. With regard to the recouping of costs of therapy services, Alison 
reported that the expectation was that the local authority and CCG (Clinical 
Commissioning Group) would jointly commission services. It was hoped that 
when the Children & Families Bill was passed further clarity would be given. 
Jude’s final point related to stability of funding despite having entrants 
throughout the year. Alison responded that funding would be calculated on a 
monthly basis, with the exact approach to be agreed at the March Forum 
meeting.  

Action: Alison Farmer  
 
RESOLVED –  
That the Forum agree: 

i) The transfer of £1,300,800 back to the High Needs Block; 
ii) The pro-forma to be submitted to the EFA;  

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

iii) The proposed deployment of the Notional Schools Block for 
2014/15 and the savings targets against the centrally and de-
delegated retained DSG items;  

iv) The provision of £1.3million to be set aside for the Notional SEN 
funding until a strategy for deployment is developed;  

v) The funding targeted at the Planned Commissioned Special 
Provisions;  

vi) The funding provisions set aside for Top-Ups for LBHF residents in 
mainstream provisions in and out of borough;  

vii) The provision set aside for pupils attending Independent and Non-
Maintained Specialist settings; 

viii) The proposed deployment of the Early Years Block; and  
ix) The proposed deployment of the 2012/13 DSG underspend.  

 
 

16. CHANGES TO DBS PROCEDURES IN THE COUNCIL  
 
Andy Inett gave a verbal report on the changes to the Disclosure and Barring 
Service (DBS). He explained that all new Council employees must sign up to 
the Update Service, which would cost the employee £3, to be reimbursed by 
the Council/community school. A letter seeking consent was being sent to 
schools and the system would allow schools to check the current status of 
employees live with increased portability of clearances. Members asked 
whether governors needed be signed up as well as employees, and Andy 
explained that whilst governors could be included, it was not necessary as 
they were not routinely left alone with children. This advice was requested in 
writing as school inspectors sometimes had a different view.  

Action: Andy Inett 
 
 

17. SCHOOL DELEGATED BUDGETS  
 
Full details on this were to be provided at the subsequent March meeting.  

Action: Andy Rennision  
 
 

18. HIGH NEEDS INDICATIVE BUDGETS  
 
This update referred to the movement of funds back to the High Needs Block, 
which was discussed as part of the earlier agenda item.  
 
 

19. DSG BUDGET MONITORING  
 
A report on this subject would be provided at the March meeting.  

Action: Andy Rennison  
 
 

20. SCHOOLS FORUM WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The Forum Work Programme was agreed. Dave McNamara reported that a 
Schools Meals Contract update would also be given at the March meeting.  

Action: Dave McNamara  
 
 

21. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The dates of future Schools Forum meetings were agreed as: 

• 17th March 2014 

• 16th June 2014  
 
Subject to availability, the meetings would take place at the Randolph 
Beresford Early Years Centre and the Hammersmith Academy respectively.  
 

 
Meeting started: 2.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 3.45 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Craig Bowdery 
Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 ( : 020 8753 2278 
 E-mail: craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

Page 4



 

 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

CABINET 7 APRIL 2014 
 

 
SCHOOL ORGANISATION AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2014 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Education and Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services 
 

Open Report 

Classification:  For decision 
Key Decision: YES 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Andrew Christie, Tri-Borough Strategic Executive 
Director of Children’s Services 
 
 

Report Author:  Alan Wharton, Tri-Borough Head 
of Asset Strategy (Schools and Children’s 
Services) 
 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 7641 2911 
E-mail: 
awharton@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 
1.1 The Council has up-dated the School Organisation and Investment     

Strategy based on projected pupil numbers and opportunities for providing 
new school places. 

1.2      This report outlines the recent background to pupil place planning in 
Hammersmith & Fulham, and seeks Cabinet approval to the development 
of the Strategy. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1      That approval is given to the School Organisation and Investment 

Strategy 2014 contained in Appendix B and the recommendations 
contained therein.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. The decision is required in order to endorse the recommendations in the 
School Organisation and Investment Strategy 2014.  

 
 
4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. The School Organisation Strategy was last updated in December 2012. 
The Strategy outlined the programme of capital investment projects which 
are necessary to meet the projected need for additional school places.  

 
4.2      The Strategy also contained a series of new policy objectives, in 

particular with reference to the use of Council owned assets for free 
schools and academies, and the support of popular schools. This aligns 
with policies adopted in both RBKC and Westminster. 

 
 4.3      As referred to in paragraph 8 below, the significant Basic Need grant 

allocations in recent years have been key to the successful delivery of 
new school places, so that, on current projections, there will be sufficient 
primary school places until 2023 (the limit of the projections), and that 
there will be not be a need for new secondary places until 2019-20. This 
would appear to be the reason why the Council has not been allocated 
any Basic Need grant for the two year period 2015-17. However, it is 
anticipated that the Government will continue to move towards a much 
more focused approach to new school investment, such as inviting bids 
under a new round of Targeted Basic Need allocations.  

 
 
4.4     The Council is supportive of new free schools, which are the responsibility 

of the Department for Education, including the proposed Fulham Boys 
School (secondary), and is also working with Planning Department 
colleagues to ensure that the need for new places arising from major 
developments is fully reflected in the emerging Infrastructure Plan.  

 
 
5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

5.1 In order to progress the Strategy, on 17th February 2014  the Education 
and Children's Services Select Committee considered the impact of major 
regeneration schemes, such as Earl’s Court and White City, and the 
opportunities offered by the Community Infrastructure Levy based on the 
emerging Infrastructure Plan. 

  

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1     Key stakeholders including the Diocesan Authorities, the Education 
Funding Agency, Tri-Borough forums, and individual schools, will be 
consulted on the development of the strategy, and on individual 
proposals.  

 

Page 6



7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1    There are no legal implications arising directly from these proposals. 
 

Implications verified/completed by: David Walker, Principal Solicitor, Bi-
Borough Legal Services, 020 7361 2211 

 
 

8. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

8.1     The Council’s allocation of Basic Need grant for providing new school 
places for the period 2013-15 amounted to £4,245,993. The Council has 
not been allocated Basic Need grant for the period 2015 to 2017. This 
reflects the success of the significant investment from previous allocations, 
and the contribution to delivery of new school places by new free schools. 

 
8.2      Any potential future schemes are expected to arise as a result of large 

regeneration projects. As with the case at Earl’s Court,   these will be 
eligible for s106 planning contributions, or the Community Infrastructure 
Levy.   
 

8.3      The Government has yet to announce allocations for maintenance. 
 

Implications verified/completed by: Dave McNamara, Director of Finance, 
Children’s Services, 020 8753 3404 

 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. School Organisation Strategy 
2012 

  

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
A.    Other Implications 

B.    School Organisation and Investment Strategy 2014 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



APPENDIX A 
 
Other Implications 
 
1. Business Plan –  the Strategy will contribute to the Business Plan 

2. Risk Management – Any risks will be identified in subsequent reports 

3. Health and Wellbeing, including Health and Safety Implications -  none 

4. Crime and Disorder - none 

5. Staffing  - none 

6. Human Rights  - none 

7. Impact on the Environment – none.  

8. Energy measure issues - none 

9. Sustainability – none 

10. Communications – a consultation strategy will be implemented as part of 
any proposals arising from the strategy 

 

 
 

Page 8



1 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

School Organisation and Investment Strategy, March 

2014 

1. Background  

1.1  The School Organisation Strategy was last updated in December 2012. 

The Strategy outlined the effectiveness of the policy to address the 

pressure on school places and proposed further investment.    

1.2 A series of new policy objectives were included, in particular with 

reference to use Council owned assets for free schools and academies, 

and the policy with regard to popular schools. This aligns with policies 

adopted in both Westminster and Kensington & Chelsea. 

1.3 This Strategy sets out the current data on demand, supply, and work on 

identifying priority investment schemes in the light of announcements 

concerning Government priorities and funding.    

1.4  Attention is drawn to the increase in application for primary school places 

in H&F of 8% compared to a decrease of 10% in both Westminster and 

RBKC. This is concentrated in the north of the Borough, and  is referred 

to later in this Strategy. 

2. National , London, and local context  

 

2.1    DfE Statistical release on national pupil projections 

 DfE national data (released March 2013) indicates that rising pupil 

numbers continues to be an issue for the country as a whole.  

 Overall pupil numbers (aged up to and including 15) in state-

funded schools began to increase in 2011 and are projected to 

continue rising.  

 Numbers in maintained nursery and state-funded primary schools 

started increasing in 2010 and are projected to continue rising. By 

2021, numbers are projected to be 18% higher than in 2012, 

reaching levels last seen in the 1970s.  

Page 9



2 

 

 Between 2012 and 2016, pupil numbers in state-funded primary 

schools are projected to increase by 9%.  

 State-funded secondary pupil numbers aged up to and including 

15 started declining in 2005 and are projected to continue to 

decline until 2015, after which the increases in primary pupil 

numbers will start to flow through.  

 

2.2 Census 2011 – Hammersmith & Fulham 

The first results of the 2011 Census were released in July 2012. The 

population of Hammersmith and Fulham has increased by 10.4 per cent 

from 165,242 to 182,500.  

According to the ONS, which uses the Census data, the number of 

children and young people (0-19s) is a similar proportion to the previous 

census (20%, or around a fifth), although the proportion of residents 

aged 0-19 is less than London as a whole (24%), and England (also 

24%).  

Figure 1 

 

However, although the ONS population figures show a decrease compared 

to previous census data, both ONS and GLA projections indicate that the 

population will rise for statutory school age ranges. By 2020, the number 

of 4-10 year-olds (primary sector) is predicted to rise from 13,096 to 

Page 10



3 

 

15,597 (GLA). For the age range 11-15 (secondary sector), numbers will 

rise from 7,441 to 8,757 (GLA).  

There is also some variation by area within the borough; for example, two 

of the sixteen wards are projected to see a drop in the number of four to 

ten year olds up to 2023 (ranging from 2% in Parsons Green to 13% in 

Palace Riverside). On the other hand, fourteen wards are projected a rise, 

with Fulham Broadway the largest – a rise of 95%. When eleven to fifteen 

year olds are considered, all wards are expected to see a rise, ranging 

from 3% (Palace Riverside) to 60% (Fulham Broadway). Overall, in the 

borough the overall increase is projected to be 23% for the primary 

sector, and 27% for secondary, by 2023.  

The proportion of residents applying for places in the maintained sector 

rose between 2011 and 2012 (from 65% in 2011 to 72% in 2012) and 

again in 2013 to 74% (in contrast to a drop in Westminster and in 

Kensington and Chelsea in 2013).  

Page 11



4 

 

2.3    School population and places in Hammersmith & Fulham 

 The following chart illustrates the current capacity, Published Admissions 

Number (PAN) and Numbers on Roll (NOR) in Hammersmith & Fulham. 

The capacity is derived from a calculation of the physical space available 

within schools. This usually does not coincide with the actual numbers of 

pupils attending the school.  

The Published Admissions Number (PAN) is the advertised number of 

places. 

 The Numbers on Roll (NOR) is the actual numbers of pupils attending 

the school at a given date. 

The projected future numbers of pupils requiring a school place are 

shown in further detail in paragraph 2.4 below. It is most relevant to 

compare these to the Numbers on Roll. These figures are applicable for 

2013-14.  

 Primary 

Capacity PAN Projected 

number 

(see 

below)- 

GLA 

NOR Difference 

PAN/NOR 

10,730 10,452 9,714 9,497 955 available 

spaces 

 

Secondary 

Capacity 

(including 

West 

London 

Free 

School) 

when fully 

PAN Projected 

number 

(see 

below) - 

GLA 

NOR Difference 

PAN/NOR 

Page 12



5 

 

open 

9,210  6,790 6,299 6,203 587 available 

spaces 

 

2.4   GLA data and Borough projections   

H&F has obtained data from the GLA School Roll Projection Service in 

order to make a comparison with Westminster and RBKC. These 

projections are based on existing rolls, forward population estimates, 

inward and outward migration, new housing developments, GP 

registrations, child benefit data and other sources, which can then be 

compared with existing capacity. The GLA does not take account of 

schools which are due to open; these adjustments are made by the local 

authority when considering its own strategy for pupil place planning, as 

referred to later in this Strategy.  

The existing GLA model has limitations. The GLA is currently developing 

a new Pan-London model, which will account for cross border movement, 

and will also forecast the effects of popular schools reaching capacity. As 

it is a Pan-London model, it will yield results that are more consistent 

with the underlying total population data, and will allow boroughs to 

access information for neighbouring boroughs. This will be particularly 

useful in the Tri-Borough context.  

For some years, H&F have calculated projected school numbers on a 

different basis. This calculates demand for primary places as a 

percentage of births, and takes greater account of preference data than 

in other methods. The popularity of schools has the effect of reducing 

inward migration from other boroughs. 

The two methodologies compare as follows: 

Primary 

Year GLA Projection 3BM Projection 

2014 9714 9622 

Page 13



6 

 

2015 10141 10098 

2016 10485 10482 

2017 10735 10776 

2018 10990 10923 

2019 11160 not calculated 

2020 11347 not calculated 

 

Secondary 

Year GLA Projection 3BM Projection 

2014 6299 6371 

2015 6632 6819 

2016 7056 7287 

2017 7322 7475 

2018 7650 7685 

2019 8066 7775 

2020 8411 not calculated 

 

It will be noted that the difference between the figures is not significant 

for the purposes of school place planning. 

Pupil roll projections, from whichever method is chosen, are used to 

complete the annual returns to DfE in August (SCAP), where it is used to 

calculate the Basic Needs Allocations to local authorities which funds the 

provision of new school places. It should be noted that whilst these 

returns continue to be required, in future all new schools will open as 

academies or free schools which are outside of local authority control, 

and are provided from a separate Government funding stream. Local 

authorities may only provide new places by expanding existing schools. 

Page 14



7 

 

The following charts, based on GLA projections, clearly show that the 
need for additional secondary places will increase after 2017 at a much 

faster rate than for primary places. The Council uses these projections to 
help plan future investment in new places. As noted below in paragraph 

5, the investment programme will maintain a surplus of primary places 
until 2023, however there will be a deficit in secondary provision by 

2019-20 without further investment.  

 

Figure 2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

HF Primary Roll projections

Projection Capacity

Page 15



8 

 

Figure 3 
 

 
 

 

3.       Analysis of school place provision in Hammersmith & Fulham 

 

3.1   The population trends reflected in the statistics above are affected by local 

factors which beyond the scope of the GLA projections. These include: 

 The Voluntary Aided school sector 

 

The contribution of Voluntary Aided schools in H&F is significant. Of the 

37 primary schools, 5 are Church of England Schools and 7 are Roman 

Catholic Schools. Of the 10 secondary schools, 2 are Church of England, 

and 2 are Roman Catholic. 

 

Primary 

Diocese Borough 

resident 

Other Tri-

Borough 

resident 

Non-Tri 

Borough 

resident 

Total 

6,000

6,500

7,000

7,500

8,000

8,500

9,000

9,500

10,000

10,500

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

HF Secondary Roll projections

Projection Capacity

Page 16



9 

 

Roman Catholic  

(7 schools) 

1,892 44 199 2,139 

Church of 

England 

(5schools) 

1,122 11 142 1,275 

 

The number of VA primary places is therefore about one-third of the total 

available places. 

 

Analysis of pupils offered a community place and those offered a place in 

a VA school is complex. The majority of pupils offered places in a VA 

primary school are more likely to reflect Church attendance than 

secondary schools, which tend to reflect the primary school attended. 

 

Secondary 

Diocese Borough 

resident 

Other Tri-

Borough 

resident 

Non-Tri 

Borough 

resident 

Total 

Church of 

England (2 

schools) 

827 397 517 1,741 

Roman 

Catholic (2 

schools) 

333 279 1,538 2,150 

 

The number of VA secondary places is therefore over half of the total 

available places. Some 2,731 pupil places are taken by non-borough 

residentpupils, which represents about 40% of the places available. A 

particularly high proportion of secondary age pupils attending Roman 

Catholic schools are non-borough resident. 

  

 

 Variations in areas pressure within the Borough 

Page 17



10 

 

Appendix 1 shows the areas of the Borough expected to see high levels 

of school population increase over the next 10 years. Although widely 

spread, the north area is expected to see the highest levels of growth at 

primary level, whereas at secondary level, the concentration is in the 

south and central areas. 

 Impact of benefit changes, and other economic factors 

 

The impact of the changes to Housing Benefit entitlements has been of 

concern to schools for some time.  

Welfare reform and changes to benefits are impacting on some children 

and families across the tri-borough area. The introduction of a cap on 

Housing Benefit in the private rented sector since 2012 has impacted on 

pupils in some schools in some areas. Some schools have reported 

increased turnover, with children moving at relatively short notice, and 

others are reporting that some children are commuting longer distances, 

especially in primary schools. Anecdotal evidence suggests that families 

who are moving, whether into temporary accommodation or permanently, 

are often keen to sustain a local school place. However given the phased 

implementation it has not been possible to predict the impact locally, 

especially as decisions to stay or move home (and/or change schools), 

are taken by each individual family. The next year will present further 

challenges as more reforms are implemented and the overall benefit cap 

is introduced but census data from schools will enable us to 

retrospectively gauge the impact of the changes that occurred during 

2012. Schools have been asked to provide further details of the impact of 

benefit changes during the summer term.   

It is anticipated that there will be limited impact on our secondary schools 

as many children already travel several miles to attend schools, and will 

probably continue doing so if they were moved further away.  

 

 School performance factors, reflected in levels of demand. 

Tri-Borough application and preference data is set out in Appendix 2, 

showing the high level of parental preference for the Borough’s schools. 

Applications for school places increased by 8% in 2013. However, early 

indications from applications for September 2014 show a 6% drop 

Page 18



11 

 

compared to 2013 (1,571 to 1,477). As there was a higher than 

expected number of applications in 2013, the overall trend continues to 

be an increase.  

 

3.2  It is important to note that whilst some trends are clear, the projections 

are subject to constant change, and a range of other factors apply (such 

as patterns of housing tenure and commercial development) which affect 

the geographical distribution and levels of required investment. GLA 

projections are updated on an annual basis, and the Council’s strategy will 

also be updated on a regular basis to take account these detailed factors. 

Investment programmes take 2-3 years to develop and there is an 

inevitable risk of some mismatch between local demand and availability of 

places. This is also a consequence of new free schools which are outside 

the Council’s control. However, collaboration between the Council, the 

Education Funding Agency and other stakeholders will enable public 

resources to be targeted in the most effective way.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 19



12 

 

4.    Where pupils attend school 

4.1     H&F resident pupils attend school as follows (January 2013 figures): 

 

Primary: 

 

Secondary: 

  

100% of 4-10 

year olds 

Independent 
Schools

28%

State 
Schools

72%

Out Borough

6%

In Borough

66%

Academy/Free 
Schools

2%

Faith Schools 

24%

Community 
Schools

40%

 

100% of 11-15  

year olds  

 

Independent 
Schools 

27% 

State 
Schools 

73% 

Out Borough 

28% 

In Borough 

45% 

Academy/Free 
Schools 

17% 

Faith Schools  

0%

Community 
Schools 

28% 

Page 20



13 

 

 

4.2   The boroughs in which H&F-resident children attend maintained schools 

are shown below: 

H&F  resident children 

in 

Primary Secondary 

H&F 66% 45% 

Westminster  0%  2% 

RBKC  4%  8% 

Other boroughs  2% 18% 

Independent schools –in 

any borough or location 

28% 27% 

Total 100% 100% 

 

The home boroughs of children attending H&F maintained schools are: 

Home borough of 

children 

Primary Secondary 

H&F 88% 47% 

KC  2% 11% 

Ealing  4%  9% 

Wandsworth  0%  7% 

Brent  2%  4% 

Westminster  0%  4% 

Other boroughs  4% 18% 

Total 100% 100% 

 

Page 21



14 

 

These charts also illustrate the close relationship between the Tri-

Borough councils. 

4.3    Independent Sector 

As noted above, in H&F, 28% of primary age and 27% of secondary age 

pupils attend non-maintained (independent) schools. The comparative 

figures for Westminster and K&C are higher, particularly in K&C, and are 

shown below.  

 
Residents in LA 

maintained 
Residents in other 

LA maintained 
Residents in 

maintained sector 
Residents in non 

maintained (private) 

     

Primary:     

Hammersmith and Fulham 66% 6% 72% 28% 

Kensington and Chelsea 44% 3% 47% 53% 

Westminster 63% 7% 70% 30% 
 
Tri-Borough average 58% 6% 64% 36% 

     

     

Secondary:     

Hammersmith and Fulham 45% 28% 73% 27% 

Kensington and Chelsea 30% 21% 51% 49% 

Westminster 53% 17% 69% 31% 
 
Tri-Borough average 44% 22% 65% 35% 

     

     

All schools:     

Hammersmith and Fulham 58% 14% 72% 28% 

Kensington and Chelsea 39% 10% 48% 52% 

Westminster 59% 10% 70% 30% 
 
Tri-Borough average 53% 12% 64% 36% 

 

4.4   Tri-Borough  

The Tri-Borough partnership enables the three Boroughs to compare 

data more readily and make strategic plans which enable better sharing 

of resources to take place. The introduction of the GLA Pan-London 

projections during 2013 will enable a more consistent comparison across 

the Tri-Borough area. It is expected that more joint planning will develop 

over time (this has already occurred for the Alternative Provision 

Page 22



15 

 

Service). It will also enable a co-ordinated approach to new funding 

opportunities offered by the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) – see 

below. 

4.5    Conclusions 

Based on the statistics above, the following factors will influence the 

development of this Strategy. 

 There is an upward trend in the school population over the next 10 

years but there is a more urgent need to address a projected 

deficit in secondary school places, 

 There is an increase in applications for school places this year, 

compared to K&C and Westminster, the reasons for this are not 

yet fully understood,  

 Applications for new Free Schools may change the dynamics of 

supply and demand beyond those set out in this Strategy. 

 It is assumed that the proportion of children in the independent 

sector will not change significantly. 

 There are a number of major development areas within the 

borough, which are detailed below in paragraph 10. New provision 

required as a result will be covered within the planning 

infrastructure process. 

  

Page 23



16 

 

5. Progress on current school investment projects 
 

 

5.1   The table below illustrates progress in the Borough’s investment 

programme for providing additional places for the period 2013-2024. 

Primary sector 

Page 24



17 

 

  

Surplus/Defici t =

PAN number minus  

Projected Population

Ark Conway = + 30 (Year 2)

West London Free Primary NEW = + 60 (reception)

St John's  = + 30 (Year 4)

St Thomas ' = + 15  (Year 4)

Old Oak = + 15 (Year 1)

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Reception)

Holy Cross  bi l ingual  school  = + 28 (Year 3)

Holy Cross  Primary = + 30 (Year 1)

TOTAL = + 238

Ark Conway = + 30 (Year 3)

West London Free Primary = + 60 (Year 1)

St John's  = + 30 (Year 5)

St Thomas ' = + 15  (Year 5)

Old Oak = + 15 (Year 2)

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Year 1)

Holy Cross  bi l ingual  school  = + 28 (Year 4)

Holy Cross  Primary = + 30 (Year 2)

Earls  Court Primary NEW 1 FE= + 15 (Reception - 50% H&F)

Burl ington Danes  Primary NEW 1FE BDA pri= + 30 (reception)

Pope John = + 30 (Reception)

TOTAL = + 313

Ark Conway = + 30 (Year 4)

West London Free Primary = + 60 (Year 2)

St John's  = + 30 (Year 6)

St Thomas ' = + 15  (Year 6)

Old Oak = + 15 (Year 3)

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Year 2)

Holy Cross  bi l ingual  school  = + 28 (Year 5)

Holy Cross  Primary = + 30 (Year 3)

Earls  Court Primary 1FE = + 15 (Year 1 - 50% H&F)

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Reception)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 60 (reception)

Pope John = + 30 (Year 1)

 TOTAL = + 328

Ark Conway = + 30 (Year 5)

West London Free Primary = + 60 (Year 3)

St John's  =  COMPLETE

St Thomas ' = COMPLETE

Old Oak = + 15 (Year 4)

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Year 3)

Holy Cross  bi l ingual  school  = + 28 (Year 6)

Holy Cross  Primary = + 30 (Year 4)

Earls  Court Primary 1FE = + 15 (Year 2 - 50% H&F)

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Year 1)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 60 (Year 1)

Pope John = + 30 (Year 2)

TOTAL= + 283

Ark Conway = + 30 (Year 6)

West London Free Primary = + 60 (Year 4)

Old Oak = + 15 (Year 5)

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Year 4)

Holy Cross  bi l ingual  school  = COMPLETE

Holy Cross  Primary = + 30 (Year 5)

Earls  Court Primary 1FE = + 15 (Year 3 - 50% H&F)

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Year 2)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 60 (Year 2)

Pope John = + 30 (Year 3)

TOTAL =+ 255

10,482 11,093 611

10,923

Projected 

Population

2013/14

Publ ished 

Admiss ions  

Number (PAN)

2015/16

2014/15 10,098 10,765

New Provis ion/Expans ions

10,452 790

600

70811,631

11,376

667

2017/18

2016/17 10,776

9,662

APPENDIX B    Hammersmith and Fulham School  Place Planning

Primary - Reception - Year 6
T

a
ke

n
 f

ro
m

 S
C

A
P

 2
0

1
3

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

F
E

Page 25



18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Surplus/Defici t =

PAN number minus  

Projected Population

Ark Conway COMPLETE

West London Free Primary = + 60 (Year 5)

Old Oak = + 15 (Year 6)

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Year 5)

Holy Cross  Primary = + 30 (Year 6)

Earls  Court Primary 1FE = + 15 (Year 4 - 50% H&F)

                                2FE = + 15 (Reception - 50% H&F)

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Year 3)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 60 (Year 3)

Pope John = + 30 (Year 4)

TOTAL = + 240

West London Free Primary = + 60 (Year 6)

Old Oak = COMPLETE

St Stephen's  = + 30 (Year 6)

Holy Cross  Primary = COMPLETE

Earls  Court Primary 1FE = + 15 (Year 5 - 50% H&F)

                                2FE = + 15 (Year 1 - 50% H&F)

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Year 4)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 60 (Year 4)

Pope John = + 30 (Year 5)

TOTAL= + 195

2020/21 West London Free Primary = COMPLETE

St Stephen's  = COMPLETE

Earls  Court Primary 1FE = + 15 (Year 6 - 50% H&F)

                                2FE = + 15 (Year 2 - 50% H&F )

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Year 5)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 60 (Year 5)

Pope John = + 30 (Year 6)

TOTAL= + 105

2021/22 Earls  Court Primary 1 FE COMPLETE

                                2 FE  = + 15 (Year 3 - 50% H&F )

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan = - 15 (Year 6)

Burl ington Danes  Primary 2FE BDA pri= + 30 (Year 6 - Previous ly 2014/15                                                        

Pope John = COMPLETE

TOTAL= + 30

Earls  Court Primary 2 FE  = + 15 (Year 4 - 50% H&F)

Amalgamation of New Kings  and Sul ivan COMPLETE

Burl ington Danes  Primary = COMPLETE

TOTAL= + 15

Earls  Court Primary 2 FE  = + 15 (Year 5 - 50% H&F)

TOTAL= + 15

55212,231

Hammersmith and Fulham School  Place Planning

Primary - Reception - Year 6

Projected 

Population

Publ ished 

Admiss ions  

Number (PAN)

New Provis ion/Expans ions

2022/23 11,587 12,216 629

2019/20 11,347 12,066 719

11,1602018/19

11,6792023/24

711

709

682

11,871

11,462 12,171

12,20111,519

U
si

n
g

 G
LA

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n

s

Page 26



19 

 

Secondary sector 

 

 

Surplus/Deficit =

PAN number minus 

Projected Population

2013/14
Hammersmith Academy = + 120 (Year 9)

West London Free School = + 120 (Year 9)

Sacred Heart High (165 PAN year)= + 15 (Year 7)

Total = + 255

Hammersmith Academy = + 120 (Year 10)

West London Free School = + 120 (Year 10)

Lady Margaret = + 30 (Year 7)*

Fulham Boys School NEW = + 120 (Year 7)

Total = + 390

Hammersmith Academy = + 120 (Year 11)

West London Free School = + 120 (Year 11)

Lady Margaret = + 30 (Year 8)*

Sacred Heart High (expansion to 180) = + 30 (Year 7)

Fulham Boys School = + 120 (Year 8)

Total = + 420

Hammersmith Academy = COMPLETE

West London Free School = COMPLETE

Lady Margaret = + 30 (Year 9)*

Sacred Heart High = + 30 (Year 8)

Fulham Boys School = + 120 (Year 9)

Total = + 180

Sacred Heart High = + 30 (Year 9)

Fulham Boys School = + 120 (Year 10)

Total = + 150

Sacred Heart High = + 30 (Year 10)

Fulham Boys School = + 120 (Year 11)

Total = + 150

Sacred Heart High = + 15 (+ 15 PAN originally captured in 2013/14 year 7 

cohort)

Fulham Boys School = COMPLETE

Total = + 15

2020/21 8,766 8,095 -671
-

2021/22 9,079 8,095 -984
-

2022/23 9,333 8,095 -1,238
-

2023/24 9,474 8,095 -1,379
-

* Lady Margaret school is expanding to 120 from 90 PAN permanently from 2014/15.

However, as two 120 bulge years already exist within the school and are included in the 2013/14 PAN total, 

for the purposes of this exercise just three years further years of + 30 expansion will be shown.

2457,685 7,930

2018/19 7,775 8,080

-316

Published 

Admissions 

Number (PAN)

New Provision/Expansions

2017/18

2016/17 7,475 7,780 305

2014/15 6,819 7,180 361

305

8,411

Hammersmith and Fulham School Place Planning

Secondary - Year 7 - Year 11

6,790

8,095

4196,371

7,600 3137,2872015/16

T
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 S
C

A
P

 2
0

1
3

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

F
E

U
si

n
g

 G
L

A
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

s

2019/20

Projected 

Population

Page 27



20 

 

6.    Early Years 

6.1    There are currently 2,410 residents attending H&F schools and nurseries 

aged two to four. The 2 year old expansion from Sept 2013 is targeted 

at 20% nationally, rising to 40% by Sept 2014. Across the three 

boroughs it is likely that the majority of 2 year old places will be created 

in the PVI sector (including childminders). There has been limited 

interest from the maintained sector at present but this may change, 

especially once the impact of moving from full time to part time nursery 

places has been measured.  Schools will need to allow up to 6 months to 

be re-registered with Ofsted to take 2 years olds (or they can contract 

with a PVI provider to run the provision on school premises – again there 

will need to be a new registration done for a third party to deliver places 

on site).  

6.2   H&F received, from the DfE, a projection on the number of places which 

were expected to be needed by Sept 13 (170 places, based on an 80% 

take up from eligible families).  These projections are based on the take 

up of FSM for the 4-6 year old cohort and applied to the 2 year old 

population. Hempsells, the consultancy firm, has been hired by DfE to 

support boroughs with the expansion and will lead on future strategy. 

7.      Post 16 

7.1   There are currently 646  post-16 resident students  attending school 

sixth forms. A third of students (34%) of students in the maintained 

sector are H&F residents. In H&F, there has been an identified population 

growth of 1.1% between 2013 and 2015 when the participation age rises 

to 18 (GLA statistics). Not all of this growth will be expected to be 

absorbed by maintained schools. The majority is likely to be within FE 

providers, or with apprenticeship providers. However, schools are being 

encouraged to put in capital growth applications where their cohorts are 

known to come from high population growth areas.  

There are 146 individuals who are NEET (Not in Education, Employment 

or Training), compared to 152 in RBKC and 269 in Westminster. 

 

 

Page 28



21 

 

7.2      Post 16 learners with Learners with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities 

(LLDD) 

Capital projects that have been allocated to London providers to be 

ready for the 2013/14 intake span seventeen sites, which should allow 

approximately 600 additional places for post-16 LLDD learners. Ealing, 

Hammersmith and West London College re-submitted a proposal to extend its site 

but was unsuccessful.  

Special Educational Needs  

8.1 Two thirds or 67% of secondary SEN pupils are H&F resident. This 

suggests that SEN pupils are more likely to attend school within the 

borough than other pupils. 

8.2  The initial focus of the SEN strategy was on ASD (Autistic Spectrum 

Disorder) as the major growth area.  

8.3   The number of children with severe learning difficulties (SLD) has 

remained fairly constant for 5 years but the number with profound and 

multiple learning difficulties is increasing. These two groups have 

traditionally been educated together but this is increasingly 

problematical, and there is a shortage of placements for children with 

SLD. At the same time, there are increasing numbers of children with 

complex language/communication. 

9. Alternative Provision Service 

9.1   There were over 400 children identified in alternative provision in the 

three boroughs in January 2013, most in academies and independent 

schools in the north of the boroughs, as mapped by residence below. A 

brief for the Bi-Borough Alternative Provision hub project between H&F 

and K&C has been developed. This work has identified the optimum 

property and site requirements, and feasibility studies on options are 

being prepared. The intention is to deliver the chosen solution in 

September 2016.  

Page 29



22 

 

 

 

10.      Impact of new housing developments along the border with 

Kensington & Chelsea 

 

10.1     South Riverside, Fulham 

This development area remains subject to consultation. However any 

development would create pressures on the LBHF schools in the area 

which currently absorb pupils from RBKC due to the demand on schools 

in the Chelsea area. The potential requirement for a new 2FE primary 

school within the development area and the equivalent of 1FE at 

secondary level could be met within existing schools where space is 

currently available, subject to appropriate investment.  

10.2     Earl’s Court 

A new 2 form entry primary school in Earl’s Court has been secured by 

a planning obligation on the developer. The majority of the demand 

Page 30



23 

 

arises from the development on the LBHF side of the border, but a 

capital contribution reflecting demand on the RBKC side of the border 

will allow expansion or other provision within the Royal Borough if 

required. The Council is also exploring whether demand for secondary 

school places created by the development could be provided by an all-

through school. This provision will also be on the LBHF side of the 

development. 

10.3      White City 

The current proposals will require the equivalent of 1 form entry and 

both primary and secondary level. There are two primary schools within 

the development area in H&F (Pope John and Canberra), of which one, 

Pope John, is already subject to proposals to expand from 1 FE to 2FE. 

Additional primary provision also is planned alongside Burlington Danes 

Secondary School, and will be a free school. There are no proposed 

secondary schools within the development area. The two closest 

schools in H&F are Burlington Danes and Phoenix schools and an 

assessment of capacity will be carried out as proposals are brought 

forward. The Royal Borough will be opening the new Kensington 

Aldridge Academy (KALC) in 2014-15 which is 500 metres from the 

development area but has limited physical access due to the A3220 

West Cross Route. However KALC is also outside the priority admissions 

area for White City.  Further consideration of secondary provision in 

H&F will therefore be required. 

 

11       Capital funding for school investment 

11.1     DfE Allocations for Basic Need provision 

Funding allocations by the DfE for new school places (Basic Need)  are 

based on statistical returns on projected pupil numbers, supplied by 

the Council, which are in turn derived from data provided by the GLA 

(and 3BM). 

The pattern of allocations since 2012 has been as follows:  

 

Page 31



24 

 

Basic Need Allocation 2012-13 £14,381,918 

Additional Allocation from national £600M pot 

to address the need for additional places 

£18,800,000 

Basic Need Allocation 2013 to 2015 (two 

years) 

£4,245,993 

Basic Need Allocation 2015-16 NIL 

Basic Need Allocation 2016-17 NIL 

 

The sharp reduction in allocations indicates that the Government is 

taking account of funding decisions for primary free schools which 

meet basic need. The current surplus provision at both primary and 

secondary level remove basic need funding requirements in this 

allocation period.  In 2013 the Government also announced the 

Targeted Basic Need Programme to fund the provision of new places in 

the areas that need it most, and to prepare for future rises in pupil 

numbers. The approach signalled a move away from formula based 

funding allocations, and targeted resources to areas facing high 

demand for new places. This pot will also deliver free schools and 

academies in future. An application was made for the funding of the 

expansion of Sacred Heart RC School which was successful. The 

Government has not yet announced a further round of TBN allocations. 

All new schools in future will open as Academies or Free Schools. Local 

authorities will be required to run a competitive process in order to 

select the best provider. 

11.2     DfE Maintenance Allocations 

The Government is in the process of gathering extensive information 

about the condition of the national school estate through the Property 

Data Survey. As with funding for new places, this process indicates 

that the Government is working towards implementing the 

recommendations of the James Review, in which capital for 

maintenance will be allocated according to evidence of the need for 

investment.  In the meantime, funding for condition and maintenance 

will be allocated on a per-pupil basis.  

Page 32



25 

 

The funding allocations are shown below for 2012-13, 2013-14 and 

2014-15: 

 

Year 

DFC 
 

Maintenance Total 2013-14 DFC 

and Maintenance 
LA  VA LA VA 

      
2012-13 292,534 133,235 1,917,031 748,582 3,091,382 

2013-14 279,916 98,946 1,625,760 512,815 2,517,437 
2014-15 242,760 99,924 1,481,082 583,619 2,407,375 

11.3   Other DfE funding 

The Government’s announcement also includes capital funding for 16-19 

provision. £80M will be made available for 2013-14 and 2014-15 to 

maintained schools, Academies, sixth form colleges and independent 

specialist providers to fund additional places needed as a result of 

demographic changes. This funding will also support the provision of new 

places for students with learning difficulties and disabilities. 

£61M of capital maintenance funding will be allocated to sixth form 

colleges in 2013-14. Alongside this, £15M of capital maintenance funding 

will be allocated to independent specialist providers for 2013-14 and 

2014-15. 

Funding for future nursery provision is uncertain despite the requirement 

to make extra provision for 2 year olds.  

11.4   Planning contributions 

 The new Earl’s Court free school is an example of a planning 

contribution which, in this case, was sufficiently substantial to deliver a 

complete new school. S106 receipts, calculated from a ‘child yield’ 

usually result in a financial contribution in lieu of actual provision. S106 

is due to be replaced by the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in 

2014.  This will be based on the Borough’s Infrastructure Plan. CIL is a 

non-negotiable tax on development and is not site specific. 

 

Page 33



26 

 

 

11.5   Other funding sources 

 

This is most likely to comprise land transactions, where asset sales and 

regeneration may contribute to capital investment.  

 

12. Investment Programme for Schools 

 

12.1     The School Organisation Strategy 2012-13 sets out the current 

investment programme. 

In May 2012, schools (both community and VA), were invited by the 

Council to submit bids for financial support from the Basic Need 

allocation. Bids for £72.1M were received, comprising £14.3M of 

condition works and £57.8M of other works. Further analysis resulted 

in recommended schemes of £7.770M for condition works and 

£11.507M other works, some of which related to providing additional 

capacity, totalling £19.278M. This sum is adjusted in the table below. 

The spending profile against available resources for 2012-13 was 

therefore: 

 

Page 34



27 

 

Item (£,000) 

Basic Need grant   33,139 

Less  

New allocations 1,578 

Priority condition works 7,577 

Schools of Choice proposals 11,701 

Contribution to Lyric Theatre 1,500 

Sub total 10,783 

Less  

Substitution of previously identified revenue 

borrowing commitment following significant 

Government capital investment 

5,300 

Balance of available funding 5,483 

 

 

12.2    The total available funding is therefore: 

 

Balance remaining    5.483M 

Basic Need grant 2013-15    4.246M (unallocated) 

Total     9.729M 

    NB: Capital grant for free schools is additional to Basic Need grant.  
 

13.      Recommendation 

13.1     That the progress in the policy objectives contained in the previously 
approved Strategy is noted. 

 

13.2     That the approach set out in this Strategy, and continuing the 
previously approved policy objectives, is approved. 

 
 

Ian Heggs 

Page 35



28 

 

Director of Schools Commissioning 

 

Andrew Christie 

Executive Director of Children’s Services 

 

 

Appendices 

1. Projected population changes for pupils aged 4-10 and 11-15 

2. Application and Preference Data 

 

Background Papers 

School Organisation Strategy, December 2012 

  

 

Contact Officer: Alan Wharton, Tri-Borough Head of Asset Strategy (Schools 

and Children’s Services) Tel: 020 7641 2911 E-mail: 

awharton@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Page 36



Briefing Paper to the Schools Forum to Approve the Schools Funding Arrangement s for 

2014/15 

 

Introduction 

This paper sets out the School funding arrangements for 2014/15 for approval of the forum. All the 

strategies contained within this report, are a culmination of forum discussions over the last 12 

months.  Forum have not made any significant changes to the funding formula over recent years, 

beyond responding to various EfA initiatives and national prescription.   

At a local level , the only real change in the approach for 2014/15 school budgets was the use of 

the English as an additional language (EAL) as a funding factor. This means pupils with EAL could 

attract funding for up to 3 years after they enter statutory school systems. Local authorities could 

chose to use indicators based on one, two or three years and could have separate values for 

primary and secondary. The forum approved the use of this funding element at the October 2013 

meeting. The funding pot was created by transferring funds from the FSM6 area equivalent to the 

Additional Education Needs (AEN) pot for 2012/13. 

 It is important to note that there are three allowable indicators for EAL (under the current funding 

regime), all based on the Language code given in the census. Pupils can be coded as “1_ENG”, 

“3_UNK” where there language is unknown or undeclared and all other pupils are coded as 

“2_OTH”. Pupils attract EAL funding if they are grouped as “2_OTH”on the autumn 2012 census 

and can be shown to have been in the school system for less than one year, less than two years or 

less than three years. This is the methodology used by the EFA to count the number of pupils that 

attracts EAL3 funding. 

The two tables below analyses the various elements pots within the 2012/13 AEN budget that were 

used to create the EAL3 funding pot.  Forum felt this was an extra alternative, to the already heavily 

used IDACI and Free School Meal indicators used to identify and target resources at deprivation.  

This will be annually reviewed as part of the budget setting programme. 

Primary  AEN available for EAL3 funding Element 2014/15 School 
Budgets 

Analysis Funding Transfer 

EAL funded at £70 for each 
qualifying pupil (5007) 350,490  

Asylum Seekers funded at £272 
for each qualifying pupil (709) 192,973  

Pupils in Bed and Breakfast 
funded at £156 for each 
qualifying pupil (5) 1,248  

Pupils in Temporary 
Accommodation funded at £142 
for each qualifying pupil (602) 85,648  

Money  Released from Mobile 
Pupils Pot funded at £125 for 
each qualifying pupil (1353) 169,000  

Total transferred in for EAL 3 799,359  

 

  

Agenda Item 4

Page 37



 

Secondary AEN available for EAL3 funding Element in 2014/15 School 
Budgets 

Analysis Funding Transfer 

EAL funded at £56 for each 
qualifying pupil (2201) 123,060  

Asylum Seekers funded at £450 
for each qualifying pupil (52) 23,375  

Pupils in Bed and Breakfast 
funded at £707 for each 
qualifying pupil (1) 707  

Pupils in Temporary 
Accommodation funded at £355 
for each qualifying pupil (31) 11,005  

Money released from Mobile 
Pupils pot funded at £132 for 
each qualifying pupil (433) 57,250  

Total transferred in for EAL 3 215,397  

 

There is no action required for the forum to take, this is just to respond to queries raised at a 

previous forum, and identifying in a transparent way for all schoosl the approach to the data 

collection.   

The report sets out the funding arrangements in the 3 separate blocks (notional schools block, high 

needs and the early years) for ease of understanding and expediency.  It also follows on from the 

more detailed discussions that took place at Forum in January 2014 and reflects further discussions 

between the LA and the EFA. 

Notional Schools Block 

The Schools Block Pro-forma (approved by the forum on 20 January) was submitted to the EFA on 

22 January and it has now been approved. 

Within the main body of the report are the key summary tables and the detailed breakdowns are 

appended.  Table 1 details the summary of each funding element in 2014/15 and Table 2 sets out 

the Notional Schools Block control totals.  These figures have been subsequently authorised by the 

EfA following forums deliberations in January 2014.  The appendices contain the detailed budgets 

by individual schools’ 

1. Appendix 1 sets out the pro-forma submitted to EFA  

2. Appendix 2 sets out the Individual Schools Detailed Budget 

3. Appendix 3 sets out the summary between 2013/14 and 2014/15 individual schools budget 

4. Appendix 4 sets out the Provisional Schools Pupil Premium data for individual schools for 

2014 reflecting the increase in rates to £1,300 for Primary and £935 for Secondary. 

5. Appendix 5 sets out the Pupil Premium levels 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



The following tables, reflect discussions and decisions reached by Forum in January and 

subsequent approval by the EfA.   

Table 1 - 2014/15 Notional Schools Block 

          

Summary Primary Secondary 

Post 16 
Historical 
Funding Total 

AWPU 33,188,992  23,748,592    56,937,584  

Ever 6 FSM 4,277,276  2,997,166    7,274,442  

IDACI Banding 5,746,586  3,312,465    9,059,051  

High Incidence Low Attainment 1,971,188  589,678    2,560,866  

LAC 17,291  14,790    32,081  

Mobility 13,489  8,250    21,739  

EAL 759,487  215,723    975,210  

Lump Sum 3,400,000  700,000    4,100,000  

Split Sites 32,741      32,741  

Rates 390,734  377,539    768,273  

Historical Funding  - WMSF     706,610  706,610  

Sub Total Before MFG       82,468,597  

Add MFG Adjustment       508,063  

Total Funding before De-
delegation       82,976,660  

Less De-delegation       -1,084,029  

Total Funding Delegated to 
Schools       81,892,631  

 

 

Table 2 - Notional Schools Block Control Total 2014/15 

Analysis  Income Expenditure 

NSB Funding 2014/15 
announced December 2013 -86,791,000    

Analysis of Notional Schools 
Block    

Pro-forma Approved 
by EFA January 2014 

Funding delegated to 
Schools(Brought forward from 
Table 1)   81,892,631  

De-delegation (Table 1)   1,084,029  

Centrally Retained General 
Fund Items   3,691,281  

Growth Funding for Bulge 
Classes  Provisions approved 
by the EFA   123,059  

Total -86,791,000  86,791,000  
 
   

 

The approval of the Notional Schools Block means the Schools budgets approved at the January 

forum will be the final budgets for 2014/15. These are detailed in Appendix 2.

Page 39



Deployment of the High Needs Block for 2014/15 

The most significant change for 2014/15 relates to the High Needs funding block and the funding of 

SEN pupils. Following the movement to a more transparent (although higher risk for schools) 

approach to Special Schools funding, there has already been negotiation between the LA and the 

schools to agree the commissioned places in 2014/15. 

The Assistant Director of SEN will be leading through 2014/15 to produce a separate paper that 

outlines details of the funding model and next steps to prepare for the Children’s and Families Bill 

from September 2014.  Schools will also be sent a list of SEN pupils that are funded as part of their 

2014/15 High Needs Budget.  The setting of this budget for 2014/15 has needed to reflect 

increasing places and funding requirements, yet our overall High Needs pupil numbers in pre 16 

has decreased resulting in further funding pressures.  We have made provision for these at the 

January 2014 forum and as such these pressures are manageable in 2014/15, however they set 

the challenge for future years and increase the pressure on our emerging strategy for SEN being 

affordable in the future.   

Table 3 -Deployment of the High Needs Block 2014/15 
 

HNB 201415 

High Needs Block  - Pre 16 funding 690 
pupils in 2014/15 against 703 funded in 
2013/14    -17,170,000  

High Needs Block  - Post 16 funding 88 in 
2014/15 and 78 in 2013/14   -1,290,000  

Provisional HNG DSG Income 2014/15   -18,460,000  
We require funding for the equivalent of 709 pupils in 2014/15 a 
shortfall of 19 which is worth a minimum of £190k which would 
almost have removed the deficit in the model if approved for future 
years. 

Expenditure     

Base Funding in Specialist Provisions 
maintained by LBHF   5,854,000  

Top Up funding for in borough residents in 
LBHF Specialist Provision   5,781,600  

Notional SEN pre and Post 16 in LBHF 
mainstream settings and academies   1,758,000  

Top Up for pre and post 16 for LBHF 
Residents in LBHF Provision   1,206,245  

Top ups for LBHF residents attending 
qualifying 6th form colleges   475,421  

Cost of LBHF residents attending specialist 
and mainstream provisions outside the 
borough   988,879  

Projected  costs of Independent High Needs   1,321,317  

DSG GF to the HNB   1,401,000  

Projected Cost 2014/15   18,786,462  

Projected Shortfall   326,462  

 

Page 40



The table shows that the funding allocation for 2014/15 in respect of High Needs is £326k less than 

the budget demands.  Officers expressed concern at the challenges in SEN at previous forums and 

as part of the EfA submission provision was made of £775k to cushion HSEN funding in 2014/15  

and that will be used to address this shortfall.  It will also provide some support for Special Schools 

where take up does not meet their managed (expected place numbers) see table 4b.  

Funding for High Needs provision in Special Settings is detailed in tables 4a and 4b.  The following 

key principles have been applied to these budgets: 

a) Baseline 2013/14 funding is the required amounts for the schools, however with the 
changing need levels, it is not always possible for the schools to fill all their places within 
that resource envelope.  Therefore, where appropriate targeted funding to address 
inconsistencies in provision  has been applied to ensure a fair representation of funding 
needs 
 

b) The approach to Special School Funding is akin to the Private and Voluntary sector Early 
Years approach, although the impact for one unfilled place in a Special School has 
significantly greater financial effect.  There are two key place numbers per school, firstly 
capacity numbers which are mainly historic and tie us back to previous government tables, 
secondly and more importantly each school has a managed place number.  This carries 
enormous impact as it is the number of places which the school will need to fill to in effect 
break even.  Table 4a and 4b identify the financial risks that some of the Special Schools 
are carrying around pupil numbers and in effect the challenges that [presents onwards to 
financial stability and forward planning.  
 

c) The expected place numbers are then applied to the funding required to calculate the 
amount of top up required to provide services, in effect the top up charge for both LBHF and 
other commissioners of High needs services.  This is the premium that the Special Schools 
charge commissioners and clearly if they are full the school has sufficient resource, but if 
there are too many vacancies the financial risk is great. 

 
d) When assessing the needs for funding, for the schools with planned changes for Roll 

Growth / structured plan to change the schools roll numbers and these are materialising eg 
Wood Lane.  An amount appropriate to last years top up levels for the extra pupils has been 
applied.  The other main growth in numbers requiring extra finances is at Queensmill 
Special School whos new site will be open in September, enabling them to operate at higher 
numbers than currently and reducing the burden on alternative placement budgets. 
 

e) Forum are asked to note the potential funding risk carried by their Special Provision 
colleagues on table 4b.  This stands at £686k and the LA has some provision in balances to 
assist with Special Schools that struggle to recruit to their vacancies, but cannot address all 
of the risk. 

 

The two tables set out the 2013.14 position and then the budgets for 2014/15. 

  

Page 41



 
Table 4a – Baseline for Special Schools / Alternative Provision 

 

[--------------- 2013/14 ---------------] 

Setting Capacity 
Place 
Numbers 

Managed 
Placed 
Numbers 
[used for 
top up 
charges] 

 Funding 
levels for 
2013/14  

Roll 
Changes 
/ Growth 
proposed 
for 
2014/15 

Description 

Cambridge 100 78 
       
1,794,200  

    

Jack Tizard 80 77 
       
2,093,667  

320,000 
Hydrotherapy provision and increasing 
needs of students 

Queensmill 130 110 
       
3,032,112  

285,000 
Provision for New School opening and 
preparing for increased pupil in year 
and respite 

Woodlane 88 83 
       
1,550,889  

86,262 
Increased provision following school 
expansion 

Miles Coverdale 

Unit 
21 21 

         
256,633  

    

Queens Manor 

Unit 
30 30 

         
419,682  

    

Queensmill 

Fulham Primary 

Q'mill Unit 

30 20 
         
300,000  

375,027 
The unit requires greater intensive 
support ratios to help the integration 
process: 

Queensmill 

Fulham Coll Q4 

Unit 

      61,250 New Secondary Unit 

Queensmill 

Fulham Coll Q4 

Unit Sep14-

Mar15 

      171,500 
New Secondary Unit increasing 
capacity from September 

Bridge Academy 

[TOTAL] 
150 180 

       
3,054,233  

100,000 
Delegation of repairs and Maintenance 
and site funding previously held by LA 

TBAP Langford 

Courtyard 

Academy 

[Special] 

10 8 
         
241,095  

    

TBAP Primary 

PRU Academy 

[AP] 

8 8 
         
274,486  

    

Totals funded via 

School Funding  
647  615  13,016,997  1,399,039  0  

Children in other 

settings:  
56         

Reconciliation 
back to EfA totals 703  

 
  

Page 42



 
Table 4b - Proposed top-up rates/projections 014/15 in LBHF Specialist settings 

 

 

[--------------- 
2014/15 
Proposed 

-----------
----]  

Setting Capacit
y Place 
Number
s 

Managed 
Placed 
Numbers 
[used for 
top up 
charges] 

Core 
Funding 
Allocated 
based on 
Managed 
place 
numbers 

Total 
Funding to 
recover 
through 
Top ups  

Total 
Allocation 
based on 
Managed 
Place 
Numbers 

Top Up 
Rates 
2013/14 

Top Up 
Rates  
2014/15 

Secure 
Income 
LBHF 

Secure Out 
Borough 

Unsecure 
Income 

 

Cambridge 100 75 750,000 1,044,200 1,794,200 10,182 13,923 487,300 417,700 139,200 
 

Jack Tizard 71 70 700,000 1,713,700 2,413,700 16,801 24,481 1,052,700 514,100 146,900 
 

Queensmill 130 122 1,220,000 2,097,100 3,317,100 15,746 17,189 1,220,400 601,600 275,000 
 

Woodlane 94 92 920,000 717,200 1,637,200 7,842 7,796 397,600 319,600 0 
 

Miles 

Coverdale 

Unit 

21 18 180,000 76,600 256,600 2,591 4,256 76,600 0 0 
 

Queens Manor 

Unit 
30 20 200,000 219,700 419,700 5,984 10,985 131,800 11,000 76,900 

 
Queensmill 

Fulham 

Primary 

Q'mill Unit 

30 30 300,000 375,000 675,000 n/a 12,500 262,500 112,500 0 
 

Queensmill 

Fulham Coll 

Q4 Unit 

  6 New unit 61,300 61,300   10,217 10,200 51,100 0 
 

Queensmill 

Fulham Coll 

Q4 Unit 

Sep14-Mar15 

  12 New Unit 171,500 171,500   14,292 100,000 71,500 0 
 

Bridge 

Academy 

[TOTAL] 

170 180 1,440,000 1,714,200 3,154,200 8,635 9,523 1,666,600 0 47,600 
 

TBAP 

Langford 

Courtyard 

Academy 

[Special] 

10 8 80,000 161,100 241,100 20,137 20,138 161,100 0 0 
 

TBAP Primary 

PRU Academy 

[AP] 

8 8 64,000 210,500 274,500 26,311 26,313 210,500 0 0 
 

Totals funded 

via School 

Funding  

664  641  5,854,000 8,562,100 14,416,100     5,777,300 2,099,100 685,600 
 

Children in 

other settings:  
45                   

 
Reconciliation 
back to EfA 
totals 709   

 

The main challenges being faced in this block are ensuring that: 

• The allocation of further high needs resources into mainstream that enables the aspiration 

for more funding to be directed into the schools budgets, whilst protecting that outlying 

schools (ie very inclusive schools that do not generally trigger the usual proxy indicators ) 

and ensuring that a more consistent approach is applied across all three boroughs which 

involves a modicum of financial transition and practice changes.  

• The funding approach for Special Provision remains affordable and reflects all the work they 

are undertaking to support mainstream and other Special Provision colleagues 

These challenges are the focus for 2014/15 for the forum and schools. 

 

Page 43



• Does the forum approve the proposed deployment of the High Needs Block? 

 
  
  
Early Year’s Block 

Table 6 below shows the deployment of the Early Years funding for the DSG. The January census 

has been used to fund the early years settings, but as pupils are admitted throughout the year  

there is some provision set aside to manage the demands in this area given the boroughs 

increasing population. 

The methodology for calculating the deprivation funding for the PVI sector has not changed, but no 

deprivation funding has been applied to the budgets for the Nursery classes due to the reduction in 

the reception uplift funding in 2014/15. There has been a slight increase in the full and part time per 

pupil  rates(£150 and £704) to reduce the overall funding in this sector. The overall reduction to this 

funding pot is £493,721. Details are shown in Appendix 4. 

 

Although there are funding risks associated with full and part time places, LBHF did not receive the 

top up funding that our partner boroughs received for childcare places (as we were already 

exceeding the 90% threshold). As such the immediate pressures felt within the other 2 boroughs 

have not manifested in LBHF. 

 

For the longer term the council and Schools  Forum will need to prepare a strategy to implement an 

implementation plan for structured change to full and part time places and it is recommended that a 

formal subgroup is convened during the summer term to develop a time plan to outline the 

approach. 

 Does the forum approve of the deployment of the Early Year’s Block? 

 

Pupil Premium  
 

The Pupil Premium was introduced by the Government in April 2011 to close the attainment gap 

between those pupils from deprived backgrounds and those from less deprived backgrounds. 

Allocations are made under the following categories. 

 

Free School Meals 

The indicator used is pupils eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) “Ever 6”. For the purposes of 

these grant conditions, “Ever 6 FSM” means those pupils recorded on the January 2014 School 

Census who were recorded as known to be eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) on any of the 

termly censuses since Summer 2008, including the January 2014 School Census. Each pupil will 

only be counted once. 

 

Page 44



In the 2014 to 2015 financial year, schools will receive £1,300 per eligible primary pupil and an 

allocation of £935 for eligible secondary pupils. 

 

• Appendix 6 shows details of the Provisional Pupil PREMIUM Grants for 2014/15 for 

each school. The rates for the coming year have increased as follows: 

• £,1300 per pupil for Primary 

• £935 per pupil for secondary and  

• £1,900 for each Looked After Child 

Page 45



Appendix 1

��������	
���	������������������������

��������

����	�
���

�������������	���

���������	����� ���

�������	���� ������	��� ��	���
������	�������	�	�����������

��������� !

������������������� ���� !!�""# $%&'"(

)���*��+������������,�"� � $�#$ �"#�  ,&$#(

)���*��+��$�������� %�  � �"�'%�����   &��(

�������	����
������������	�

����������

���������

�����	�����

������

"��������������	����

����������#$�

"��������������	����

������������#$�
������	��� ��	���

������	�������	�	�����������

��������� !

�������

#�	�������"#�

� !

���������

#�	�������"#�

� !

-*.��(�������� �", &'' $�$%#&'� �$�#,,�#,�  !& ,(

-*.��(�*���/��� � �' '&�#  �",,&'# �#�"",� ��  ,&�'(

01�20�3��/�� ��%%&%% �!'%&%% $�$&%'  " &�� �$#��%�# ,&%%( !&"%(

01�20�3��/��# ��'%&%% �"%%&%% '!$&"$ � �&� ���'� '�   & %(  '&$%(

01�20�3��/��� �,%%&%% �"'%&%%  ��'�&%, �#�&  � �'$ �"� #,&%%( ��&%%(

01�20�3��/��$ �,'%&%% � �%%%&%%  �'$ &,, �$'& % � �!% �$#, � &$%( �'&$%(

01�20�3��/��' �!%%&%% � � %%&%%  �'%"&"" '!�& � � �!'#�,�� �'&�%( �,&!%(

01�20�3��/��� �!'%&%% � � '%&%% #�   & $ !'#&�" �#�,,$�, # ' &#%( '�&!%(

�������	����
������������	�

����������

���������

�����	�����

������

"��������������	����

����������#$�

"��������������	����

������������#$�
������	��� ��	���

������	�������	�	�����������

��������� !

�������

#�	�������"#�

� !

���������

#�	�������"#�

� !

������4�/�������25��/�������2� ��2�6�.��5� # ��#�%! %&%$(

7������������ �#"%&!� #��  &$$ �,'"�$!,  %%&%%(

7�����*���/��� �,%,& % �%'&%! �# '�,#�  %%&%%(

'��.�
�����
�	������������+��5�����	���/������������

������/����
�#'%&%% �#'%&%% '�&"� ��&%% �# �,�" %&%�(  %%&%%(  %%&%%(

�������	���� %���
	���
�����	�����

�����

������	�������

���������&'�����&()*�

#$��������	�+��

"��������������	����

��������������

���������#$��

������	�+��

������	��� ��	���
������	�������	�	�����������

��������� !

�������

#�	�������"#�

� !

���������

#�	�������"#�

� !

8���������5���/�-	�5��

#%'

 ��3����7����������

�+��9��+5��/��	����:������9�:�

������,��	� �!&%%

�����	���������� ������,��	� #�	�������"#�� !

���'�$&  "�� #&%%

-*./012/*34

#&!!(

�'� ��&!� #�,'!&%%  &,�(

�'� ��&!�  �!$ &%%  &# (

#��1����;����� -'./111/401  "&"!(

�!%%&%% $%& %

-'/5(0/515

%&%%(

$��7�+���5��������//�����������+	�+��

�7���
 & "(

P
a
g
e
 4

6



Appendix 1

���������	
�	������� ������� ������

���������	
�	����������� ������

����	�������� !�	�����"��#�	$�%&���

 �#� ���'	$ �!"���(��"!)
*������ ����+� *���,��� �������

��������	�
��

�
������
��
�
���
��
���
�����������

�����������

���������� ����� ����� �����

�� ����� ����� �����

-�
�����!��	����"�!"� ���%
� �!) .�/��

����	�������!��	����"�!"� ��

%
� �!)�
.�/��

(��� ��!�"�� !���!��	����"�!"� ��

%
� �!)

�� �����

� !�"�� �����

�"#$�!" �����

�� �����

�� �����

���)�'/������	� �����
!��	��!�%��	��	 ��0���!������"������$��
�	���1�'.�)

�
������
��
�
���
��
���
�����������

�����������

�� ����� ����� �����

�� �����

�� �����

�� �����

�� �����

�� �����

�$��"#��%$" ���&���

��� �������	$��	��!�� �	$�1����!2�%$��	!�
���0����������0�#����!����1������ �	$��	�3��!�� ��)

�)�-��������	
�	�

*������ �,�++��� *�,���,���

�!�'#��$## +��+�

�������

��	�
� (�)��*�)��������)��+�*	�

���� (�)��*�)�����*�	
����+�*	�

���� ,
��
���*-,����

�)���
����
 *���,������ *���,������

�)����!����1����

- ��!����#����� ��	���#����!��	����	������ �	�
0���"�!"� �!�1���"��!��!����1�����0� ����- ��!�� ��#��0 �	4��1�������	������!���"����1�� ���"�!"� �!��� !��!����1���"��"��������	������!����������� �
��!�
�1���	����0��"��1��"���"�!�!��

-�
������� �	�
0���"�!"� � .�/������������!��!������
��� �
��!�
2

����	�������� �	�
0���"�!"� � .�/������������!��!����!���	���� �
��!�
2

�  ��"��$"��!�"�� !���!��	���

�"�!"� ��%
� �!)

�)�.�	$��-��
�	�!

��)��� �������! �����

��)�5���! �����

��)�-.6�1�	��	$ �����

�+)���/�"�.�
 �����

7���
!��	�� ,
��
���*-,����

�������	� � �
��!�
�1��!�"�� !��
� $�
��������	$�.��+���

'/������	� �7���
!��	��� �����

'/������	� �7���
!��	��+ �����

'/������	� �7���
!��	��� �����

'/������	� �7���
!��	��� �����

'/������	� �7���
!��	��� �����

�
������������
��*	�

��.
	/��
�)�����0	�������������������
������� �%��'%�"$#

��)�(�	�
�
�.�	��	$�8���	����%(.8��!�!�����������) 123(4-5

9�

P
a
g
e
 4

7



Appendix 1

����������	
�����

��
�������	
�������	������������	��������	
���������������

��������	 
��������������������������	

�������
���
���������������������	
���������	������������	������ ���� �!" �#!$�

%��&�������
&���&�������'����������� ��(	��
������' ���&��&�������
&���&������������
�������! ����&���)���������*���

��������������������������������������

�����������������������������������

��
���� ���������


����!"���������!�#��� $�" $%&'

+	��������	
�����

��

��#��

,���
�������������������
&��&��&�������)����
 ��#��

()%'$�

���-
&��������������	�)��� �.$" ��/#��

���������������������������	�)��� ��#��

�*+,+-','.'

/(%/)�

P
a
g
e
 4

8



Appendix 1

P
a
g
e
 4

9



Appendix 1

P
a
g
e
 5

0



Appendix 1

P
a
g
e
 5

1



Appendix 2

URN LAESTAB School Name AWPU Total AEN Total School Factors total Total Allocation Post MFG Budget Dedelegation

Total Funding 

Schools Block

Compare School 

Block Allocation 

2013/14

Diff Allocation  - 

Schools Block 

Allocation

Total Allocation per 

Pupil (excluding 

New Delegation)  - 

Schools Block

Total>   £56,937,584.74 £19,923,388.68 £5,607,624.04 £82,468,597.46 £82,976,655.41 -£1,084,028.46 £81,892,626.95 £82,377,848.44 -£485,221.49

Bayonne

James Lee

Randolph Beresford

Vanessa

100321 2052002 ADDISON PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,397,131.12 £552,301.87 £125,606.00 £2,075,038.99 £2,075,038.99 -£38,725.68 £2,036,313 £2,125,998 -£89,684.22 £5,307.01

100322 2052026 AVONMORE PRIMARY SCHOOL £712,822.00 £267,178.14 £117,699.00 £1,097,699.14 £1,097,699.14 -£19,758.00 £1,077,941 £1,108,360 -£30,419.35 £5,543.94

100324 2052061

BRACKENBURY PRIMARY 

SCHOOL £1,635,926.49 £556,535.83 £122,149.00 £2,314,611.32 £2,314,611.32 -£45,344.61 £2,269,267 £2,321,005 -£51,737.92 £5,053.74

100326 2052134 Miles Coverdale Primary School £734,206.66 £328,872.91 £116,043.00 £1,179,122.57 £1,179,122.57 -£20,350.74 £1,158,772 £1,258,803 -£100,031.62 £5,866.28

100328 2052223 Flora Gardens School £819,745.30 £360,314.31 £118,294.00 £1,298,353.61 £1,298,353.61 -£22,721.70 £1,275,632 £1,347,910 -£72,277.99 £5,645.02

100329 2052286 FULHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL £805,488.86 £352,979.85 £122,586.00 £1,281,054.71 £1,288,050.82 -£22,326.54 £1,265,724 £1,409,238 -£143,513.40 £5,699.34

100330 2052309 New King's Primary School £620,155.14 £251,499.33 £113,580.00 £985,234.47 £985,234.47 -£17,189.46 £968,045 £969,035 -£989.79 £5,728.11

100331 2052350 Kenmont Primary School £737,770.77 £294,747.79 £113,145.00 £1,145,663.56 £1,145,663.56 -£20,449.53 £1,125,214 £1,102,463 £22,750.84 £5,534.61

100332 2052367 Langford Primary School £723,514.33 £369,059.00 £117,824.00 £1,210,397.33 £1,210,397.33 -£20,054.37 £1,190,343 £1,350,083 -£159,740.20 £5,962.55

100333 2052383 Lena Gardens Primary School £659,360.35 £309,470.45 £113,765.00 £1,082,595.80 £1,082,595.80 -£18,276.15 £1,064,320 £1,086,304 -£21,984.08 £5,915.82

100334 2052408 Melcombe Primary School £1,108,438.21 £485,719.93 £119,521.00 £1,713,679.14 £1,713,674.14 -£30,723.69 £1,682,950 £1,711,220 -£28,269.65 £5,510.22

100335 2052444 OLD OAK PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,279,515.49 £646,311.96 £120,700.00 £2,046,527.45 £2,046,527.45 -£35,465.61 £2,011,062 £1,862,854 £148,208.23 £5,748.67

100337 2052484

QUEEN'S MANOR PRIMARY 

SCHOOL £598,770.48 £208,447.31 £113,682.00 £920,899.79 £924,702.66 -£16,596.72 £908,106 £1,018,029 -£109,922.77 £5,537.14

100338 2052555 Sir John Lillie £1,414,951.67 £670,292.29 £124,738.00 £2,209,981.96 £2,209,981.96 -£39,219.63 £2,170,762 £2,264,492 -£93,729.48 £5,594.89

100339 2052577 SULIVAN PRIMARY SCHOOL £969,437.92 £420,214.15 £119,307.00 £1,508,959.07 £1,509,003.97 -£26,870.88 £1,482,133 £1,409,246 £72,887.28 £5,547.81

100340 2052632

WENDELL PARK PRIMARY 

SCHOOL £1,504,054.42 £624,977.33 £117,460.00 £2,246,491.75 £2,246,491.75 -£41,689.38 £2,204,802 £2,232,549 -£27,746.33 £5,348.79

100341 2052660 WORMHOLT PARK SCHOOL £1,457,720.99 £763,781.13 £124,087.00 £2,345,589.12 £2,345,589.12 -£40,405.11 £2,305,184 £2,330,070 -£24,885.53 £5,763.12

100343 2052913 Greenside Primary School £698,565.56 £235,540.58 £116,394.00 £1,050,500.14 £1,050,500.14 -£19,362.84 £1,031,137 £1,064,482 -£33,344.23 £5,387.18

100344 2053300

ALL SAINTS C.E. PRIMARY 

SCHOOL £730,642.55 £99,066.16 £101,411.00 £931,119.71 £931,119.71 -£20,251.95 £910,868 £904,568 £6,299.78 £4,542.05

100345 2053354 HOLY CROSS RC PRIMARY £1,368,618.24 £338,937.33 £102,398.00 £1,809,953.57 £1,809,953.57 -£37,935.36 £1,772,018 £1,443,519 £328,499.28 £4,713.42

100346 2053368 John Betts Primary School £862,514.62 £205,350.34 £116,545.00 £1,184,409.96 £1,184,409.96 -£23,907.18 £1,160,503 £1,121,054 £39,449.02 £4,997.51

100347 2053378

ST AUGUSTINE'S PRIMARY 

SCHOOL £730,642.55 £222,090.53 £101,067.00 £1,053,800.08 £1,053,800.08 -£20,251.95 £1,033,548 £1,021,241 £12,306.84 £5,140.49

100349 2053463 S. Johns Walham Green CE £1,129,822.87 £325,082.97 £102,910.00 £1,557,815.84 £1,557,815.84 -£31,316.43 £1,526,499 £1,395,324 £131,175.31 £4,914.25

100350 2053529 ST MARY'S PRIMARY SCHOOL £734,206.66 £249,460.58 £101,489.00 £1,085,156.24 £1,085,156.24 -£20,350.74 £1,064,806 £1,059,537 £5,268.99 £5,267.75

100351 2053566 St Paul's CE Primary School £712,822.00 £298,945.38 £101,237.00 £1,113,004.38 £1,113,004.38 -£19,758.00 £1,093,246 £1,063,241 £30,005.35 £5,592.99

100352 2053578 St Peters C .E. Primary School £719,950.22 £191,151.55 £118,293.84 £1,029,395.61 £1,029,395.77 -£19,955.58 £1,009,440 £1,005,413 £4,027.11 £5,146.98

100353 2053600 St. Stephen's CE JMI £940,925.04 £255,792.32 £104,500.00 £1,301,217.36 £1,305,571.70 -£26,080.56 £1,279,491 £1,178,445 £101,045.78 £4,945.35

100354 2053602 The Good Shepherd £834,001.74 £259,254.27 £102,049.00 £1,195,305.01 £1,195,305.01 -£23,116.86 £1,172,188 £1,196,011 -£23,822.70 £5,108.14

100355 2053645 Pope John Catholic Primary School £858,950.51 £358,061.34 £101,140.00 £1,318,151.85 £1,318,151.85 -£23,808.39 £1,294,343 £1,291,848 £2,495.07 £5,469.51

100357 2053648

St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic 

Primary School £1,211,797.40 £457,684.55 £101,200.00 £1,770,681.95 £1,770,681.95 -£33,588.60 £1,737,093 £1,722,590 £14,503.52 £5,223.25

134009 2053649 Larmenier and Sacred Heart £1,500,490.31 £358,418.73 £109,244.00 £1,968,153.04 £1,968,153.04 -£41,590.00 £1,926,563 £1,933,979 -£7,415.88 £4,686.08

134273 2053650

NORMAND CROFT COMMUNITY 

SCHOOL £687,873.23 £347,302.48 £116,185.00 £1,151,360.71 £1,639,790.65 -£19,066.47 £1,620,724 £1,593,985 £26,738.75 £8,540.58

138680 2052045 Bentworth Primary Academy £702,129.67 £345,407.00 £102,449.20 £1,149,985.87 £1,149,985.87 £0.00 £1,149,986 £1,146,725 £3,260.96 £5,927.76

100325 2052089 Canberra Primary School (Ark Swift) £1,297,336.04 £741,447.34 £104,777.20 £2,143,560.58 £2,147,995.49 £0.00 £2,147,995 £2,283,795 -£135,799.95 £5,901.01

100358 2054106 Fulham Boys College £1,905,464.34 £834,370.86 £117,360.00 £2,857,195.20 £2,857,195.20 £0.00 £2,857,195 £3,021,689 -£164,493.66 £7,743.08

100359 2054314 Phoenix High School £4,389,281.00 £2,075,862.44 £345,000.00 £6,810,143.44 £6,810,143.44 -£140,037.50 £6,670,106 £6,834,456 -£164,350.29 £8,011.93

100360 2054315

Fulham Cross Girls' School & 

Languages College £3,222,248.92 £1,337,632.92 £108,633.00 £4,668,514.84 £4,668,514.56 £0.00 £4,668,515 £4,652,084 £16,430.16 £7,481.59

100361 2054319 Hurlingham and Chelsea School £2,742,009.66 £1,161,294.96 £202,820.00 £4,106,124.62 £4,106,124.62 -£87,482.25 £4,018,642 £4,375,482 -£356,839.90 £7,732.81

137935 2054620 Sacred Heart High School £4,208,545.90 £705,434.43 £101,443.00 £5,015,423.33 £5,015,423.33 £0.00 £5,015,423 £4,868,672 £146,751.59 £6,153.89

138607 2054632 LADY MARGARET SCHOOL £2,607,749.30 £446,627.42 £100,760.80 £3,155,137.52 £3,155,137.52 £0.00 £3,155,138 £3,091,852 £63,285.52 £6,247.80

137157 2055400 The London Oratory School £4,961,986.21 £610,468.62 £101,522.00 £5,673,976.83 £5,673,976.83 £0.00 £5,673,977 £5,493,589 £180,388.07 £5,754.54

0 0 William Morris Sixth Form £0.00 £0.00 £706,610.00 £706,610.00 £706,610.00 £706,610 £706,610 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 Burlington Danes £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 TBAP £0.00 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 Hammersmith Academy £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 West London Free School £0.00 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 Queensmill School £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

SCHOOLS BLOCK 2014/15

P
a
g
e
 5

2



Appendix 2

0 0 Woodlane High School £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 Jack Tizard School £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 Cambridge School £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0.00 £0.00

0 0 Fulham Enterprise College £0.00 £0 £0.00

Queensmill Fulham College Unit

Queensmill Fulham College Unit 

(Sept to March 15)

Queensmill Fulham unit at Fulham 

Primary

P
a
g
e
 5

3



Appendix 2

School Name

Bayonne

James Lee

Randolph Beresford

Vanessa

ADDISON PRIMARY SCHOOL

AVONMORE PRIMARY SCHOOL

BRACKENBURY PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

Miles Coverdale Primary School

Flora Gardens School

FULHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL

New King's Primary School

Kenmont Primary School

Langford Primary School

Lena Gardens Primary School

Melcombe Primary School

OLD OAK PRIMARY SCHOOL

QUEEN'S MANOR PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

Sir John Lillie

SULIVAN PRIMARY SCHOOL

WENDELL PARK PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

WORMHOLT PARK SCHOOL

Greenside Primary School

ALL SAINTS C.E. PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

HOLY CROSS RC PRIMARY

John Betts Primary School

ST AUGUSTINE'S PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

S. Johns Walham Green CE

ST MARY'S PRIMARY SCHOOL

St Paul's CE Primary School

St Peters C .E. Primary School

St. Stephen's CE JMI

The Good Shepherd

Pope John Catholic Primary School

St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic 

Primary School

Larmenier and Sacred Heart

NORMAND CROFT COMMUNITY 

SCHOOL

Bentworth Primary Academy

Canberra Primary School (Ark Swift)

Fulham Boys College

Phoenix High School

Fulham Cross Girls' School & 

Languages College

Hurlingham and Chelsea School

Sacred Heart High School

LADY MARGARET SCHOOL

The London Oratory School

William Morris Sixth Form

Burlington Danes

TBAP

Hammersmith Academy

West London Free School

Queensmill School

Per place Base 

Funding for 

Specialist 

Provisions in 

LBHF

Projected Top-up 

for LBHF pupils 

attending 

Specilaist 

Provisions

Notional SEN 

Funding for 

Mainstream Schools  

educating Pupils with 

SEN Statements

Proposed Top Up 

Payments for 

Maianstream Schools 

educating Pupils with 

SEN Statements

Post 16 High Needs 

funding

Total Funding 

driven through 

Schools through 

the High Needs 

Block

Compare SEN 

funding 2013/14

Diff SEN Funding 

due to end of 

current recoupment 

methodology

£5,854,000.00 £5,781,600.00 £1,758,000.00 £1,206,246.00 £0.00 £14,599,846.00 £13,438,648.45 £1,161,197.55

£18,000.00 £7,562.00 £25,562 £4,200 £21,362

£0.00 £0.00 £0 £4,600 -£4,600

£6,000.00 £1,900.00 £7,900 £2,300 £5,600

£6,000.00 £2,651.00 £8,651 £12,100 -£3,449

£54,000.00 £26,337.00 £80,337 £51,600 £28,737

£12,000.00 £13,026.00 £25,026 £17,800 £7,226

£60,000.00 £54,934.00 £114,934 £109,100 £5,834

£180,000.00 £80,900.00 £66,000.00 £40,703.00 £367,603 £381,533 -£13,930

£24,000.00 £16,606.00 £40,606 £57,900 -£17,294

£36,000.00 £15,205.00 £51,205 £349,600 -£298,395

£24,000.00 £18,907.00 £42,907 £37,900 £5,007

£18,000.00 £0.00 £18,000 £23,200 -£5,200

£48,000.00 £32,858.00 £80,858 £85,867 -£5,009

£18,000.00 £5,419.00 £23,419 £46,400 -£22,981

£54,000.00 £33,060.00 £87,060 £86,600 £460

£24,000.00 £18,280.00 £42,280 £50,300 -£8,020

£200,000.00 £131,800.00 £6,000.00 £7,953.00 £345,753 £424,314 -£78,561

£30,000.00 £18,373.00 £48,373 £38,200 £10,173

£30,000.00 £28,255.00 £58,255 £61,600 -£3,345

£30,000.00 £29,049.00 £59,049 £47,400 £11,649

£72,000.00 £58,910.00 £130,910 £139,000 -£8,090

£18,000.00 £18,099.00 £36,099 £28,400 £7,699

£36,000.00 £34,153.00 £70,153 £71,100 -£947

£24,000.00 £15,490.00 £39,490 £38,700 £790

£36,000.00 £40,524.00 £76,524 £42,000 £34,524

£48,000.00 £75,240.00 £123,240 £79,700 £43,540

£24,000.00 £20,750.00 £44,750 £51,100 -£6,350

£18,000.00 £16,814.00 £34,814 £29,200 £5,614

£48,000.00 £33,628.00 £81,628 £59,200 £22,428

£6,000.00 £0.00 £6,000 £6,000 £0

£36,000.00 £22,056.00 £58,056 £34,300 £23,756

£12,000.00 £18,696.00 £30,696 £30,700 -£4

£54,000.00 £46,855.00 £100,855 £66,900 £33,955

£24,000.00 £19,486.00 £43,486 £43,500 -£14

£60,000.00 £46,498.00 £106,498 £86,100 £20,398

£36,000.00 £34,423.00 £70,423 £82,100 -£11,677

£0.00 £0.00 £0 £20,800 -£20,800

£12,000.00 £10,146.00 £22,146 £22,200 -£54

£66,000.00 £60,176.00 £126,176 £70,800 £55,376

£36,000.00 £14,187.00 £50,187 £29,600 £20,587

£54,000.00 £38,729.00 £92,729 £39,200 £53,529

£36,000.00 £17,147.00 £53,147 £28,600 £24,547

£24,000.00 £11,533.00 £35,533 £17,400 £18,133

£30,000.00 £15,259.00 £45,259 £42,700 £2,559

£96,000.00 £35,814.00 £131,814 £98,800 £33,014

£126,000.00 £21,171.00 £147,171 £140,200 £6,971

£90,000.00 £44,755.00 £134,755 £109,700 £25,055

£1,584,000.00 £2,038,200.00 £3,622,200 £3,524,873 £97,327

£30,000.00 £33,452.00 £63,452 £29,800 £33,652

£24,000.00 £17,112.00 £41,112 £12,700 £28,412

£1,220,000.00 £1,220,400.00 £2,440,400 £2,201,249 £239,151

HIGH NEEDS BLOCK 2014/15

P
a
g
e
 5

4



Appendix 2

Woodlane High School

Jack Tizard School

Cambridge School

Fulham Enterprise College

Queensmill Fulham College Unit

Queensmill Fulham College Unit 

(Sept to March 15)

Queensmill Fulham unit at Fulham 

Primary

£920,000.00 £397,600.00 £1,317,600 £1,244,308 £73,292

£700,000.00 £1,052,700.00 £1,752,700 £1,607,741 £144,959

£750,000.00 £487,300.00 £1,237,300 £1,417,464 -£180,164

£18,000.00 £14,065.00 £32,065 £0 £32,065

£10,200.00 £10,200 £0 £10,200

£100,000.00 £100,000 £0 £100,000

£300,000.00 £262,500.00 £562,500 £0 £562,500

P
a
g
e
 5

5



Appendix 2

School Name

Bayonne

James Lee

Randolph Beresford

Vanessa

ADDISON PRIMARY SCHOOL

AVONMORE PRIMARY SCHOOL

BRACKENBURY PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

Miles Coverdale Primary School

Flora Gardens School

FULHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL

New King's Primary School

Kenmont Primary School

Langford Primary School

Lena Gardens Primary School

Melcombe Primary School

OLD OAK PRIMARY SCHOOL

QUEEN'S MANOR PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

Sir John Lillie

SULIVAN PRIMARY SCHOOL

WENDELL PARK PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

WORMHOLT PARK SCHOOL

Greenside Primary School

ALL SAINTS C.E. PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

HOLY CROSS RC PRIMARY

John Betts Primary School

ST AUGUSTINE'S PRIMARY 

SCHOOL

S. Johns Walham Green CE

ST MARY'S PRIMARY SCHOOL

St Paul's CE Primary School

St Peters C .E. Primary School

St. Stephen's CE JMI

The Good Shepherd

Pope John Catholic Primary School

St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic 

Primary School

Larmenier and Sacred Heart

NORMAND CROFT COMMUNITY 

SCHOOL

Bentworth Primary Academy

Canberra Primary School (Ark Swift)

Fulham Boys College

Phoenix High School

Fulham Cross Girls' School & 

Languages College

Hurlingham and Chelsea School

Sacred Heart High School

LADY MARGARET SCHOOL

The London Oratory School

William Morris Sixth Form

Burlington Danes

TBAP

Hammersmith Academy

West London Free School

Queensmill School

Early Years Base 

Funding Lump Sum Deprivation Funding

Total Early 

Years Single 

Formula 

Funding

Compare EYS 

funding 

2013/143 Diff EY Funding

Total 2014/15 

Funding Before 

Pupil Premium

£0.00 £6,253,502.00 £740,129.00 £332,814.00 £7,326,445.00 £7,815,911.76 -£489,466.76 £103,146,217.95

£500,247.00 £12,670.00 £70,727.00 £583,644 £520,080 £63,564 £609,206

£456,360.00 £0.00 £63,720.00 £520,080 £520,080 £0 £520,080

£1,060,804.00 £350,000.00 £149,102.00 £1,559,906 £1,579,256 -£19,350 £1,567,806

£319,058.00 £27,459.00 £49,265.00 £395,782 £435,741 -£39,959 £404,433

£192,000.00 £0.00 £192,000 £184,087 £7,913 £2,308,650

£65,736.00 £0.00 £65,736 £107,027 -£41,291 £1,168,703

£136,950.00 £0.00 £136,950 £113,743 £23,207 £2,521,151

£96,000.00 £0.00 £96,000 £107,027 -£11,027 £1,622,375

£113,481.00 £0.00 £113,481 £116,288 -£2,807 £1,429,719

£147,504.00 £0.00 £147,504 £188,368 -£40,864 £1,464,433

£125,028.00 £0.00 £125,028 £125,528 -£500 £1,135,980

£115,200.00 £0.00 £115,200 £124,152 -£8,952 £1,258,414

£90,387.00 £0.00 £90,387 £124,152 -£33,765 £1,361,588

£96,000.00 £0.00 £96,000 £111,308 -£15,308 £1,183,739

£185,931.00 £0.00 £185,931 £205,693 -£19,762 £1,955,941

£171,135.00 £0.00 £171,135 £210,869 -£39,734 £2,224,477

£105,291.00 £0.00 £105,291 £95,281 £10,011 £1,359,150

£146,268.00 £0.00 £146,268 £256,865 -£110,597 £2,365,403

£91,596.00 £0.00 £91,596 £121,566 -£29,970 £1,631,984

£180,480.00 £0.00 £180,480 £222,617 -£42,137 £2,444,331

£99,840.00 £0.00 £99,840 £71,535 £28,305 £2,535,934

£92,160.00 £0.00 £92,160 £107,027 -£14,867 £1,159,396

£99,840.00 £0.00 £99,840 £111,308 -£11,468 £1,080,861

£115,200.00 £0.00 £115,200 £128,433 -£13,233 £1,926,708

£0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0 £1,237,027

£0.00 £0.00 £0 £0 £0 £1,156,788

£71,214.00 £0.00 £71,214 £111,308 -£40,094 £1,642,463

£99,840.00 £0.00 £99,840 £107,027 -£7,187 £1,199,460

£90,400.00 £0.00 £90,400 £111,469 -£21,069 £1,265,274

£89,931.00 £0.00 £89,931 £108,124 -£18,193 £1,105,371

£99,840.00 £0.00 £99,840 £111,308 -£11,468 £1,437,387

£80,640.00 £0.00 £80,640 £111,308 -£30,668 £1,283,524

£76,692.00 £0.00 £76,692 £98,465 -£21,773 £1,471,890

£111,360.00 £0.00 £111,360 £119,871 -£8,511 £1,891,939

£150,645.00 £0.00 £150,645 £119,478 £31,167 £2,183,706

£372,628.00 £350,000.00 £0.00 £722,628 £700,632 £21,996 £2,413,775

£65,736.00 £0.00 £65,736 £70,489 -£4,753 £1,215,722

£142,080.00 £0.00 £142,080 £158,400 -£16,320 £2,312,221

£0 £0 £0 £2,983,371

£0 £0 £0 £6,720,293

£0 £0 £0 £4,761,244

£0 £0 £0 £4,071,789

£0 £0 £0 £5,050,956

£0 £0 £0 £3,200,397

£0 £0 £0 £5,805,791

£0 £0 £0 £853,781

£0 £0 £0 £134,755

£0 £0 £0 £3,622,200

£0 £0 £0 £63,452

£0 £0 £0 £41,112

£0 £0 £0 £2,440,400

EARLY YEARS BLOCK 2014/15

P
a
g
e
 5

6



Appendix 2

Woodlane High School

Jack Tizard School

Cambridge School

Fulham Enterprise College

Queensmill Fulham College Unit

Queensmill Fulham College Unit 

(Sept to March 15)

Queensmill Fulham unit at Fulham 

Primary

£0 £0 £0 £1,317,600

£0 £0 £0 £1,752,700

£0 £0 £0 £1,237,300

£0 £0 £0 £32,065

P
a
g
e
 5

7



Appendix 3

SCHOOLS BLOCK

URN LAESTAB School Name

Total Funding 

Schools Block 

2014/15

Compare 

School Block 

Allocation 

2013/14

Diff Allocation  - 

Schools Block 

Allocation

Percentage 

Change In 

Funding

2014/15 

Pupil 

Number

s

2013/1

4 Pupil 

Numbe

rs

Diff in 

Pupil 

Numbers

Percent

age 

Change 

in Pupil 

Number

s

Total Funding 

driven through 

Schools 

through the 

High Needs 

Block  - 2014/15

Compare SEN 

funding 2013/14

Diff SEN 

Funding due to 

end of current 

recoupment 

methodology

Total Early 

Years Funding  

2013/14

Compare EYS 

funding 2013/14

Total>   £81,892,627 £82,377,848 -£485,221 -0.59% £14,599,846 £13,438,648 £1,161,198 £7,326,445 £7,815,912

Bayonne £25,562 £4,200 £21,362 £583,644 £520,080

James Lee £0 £4,600 -£4,600 £520,080 £520,080

Randolph Beresford £7,900 £2,300 £5,600 £1,559,906 £1,579,256

Vanessa £8,651 £12,100 -£3,449 £395,782 £435,741

100321 2052002 ADDISON PRIMARY SCHOOL £2,036,313 £2,125,998 -£89,684 -4.22% 391 404 -13 -3.22% £80,337 £51,600 £28,737 £192,000 £184,087

100322 2052026 AVONMORE PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,077,941 £1,108,360 -£30,419 -2.74% 198 202 -4 -1.98% £25,026 £17,800 £7,226 £65,736 £107,027

100324 2052061 BRACKENBURY PRIMARY SCHOOL £2,269,267 £2,321,005 -£51,738 -2.23% 458 469 -11 -2.35% £114,934 £109,100 £5,834 £136,950 £113,743

100326 2052134 Miles Coverdale Primary School £1,158,772 £1,258,803 -£100,032 -7.95% 201 218 -17 -7.80% £367,603 £381,533 -£13,930 £96,000 £107,027

100328 2052223 Flora Gardens School £1,275,632 £1,347,910 -£72,278 -5.36% 230 241 -11 -4.56% £40,606 £57,900 -£17,294 £113,481 £116,288

100329 2052286 FULHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,265,724 £1,409,238 -£143,513 -10.18% 226 249 -23 -9.24% £51,205 £349,600 -£298,395 £147,504 £188,368

100330 2052309 New King's Primary School £968,045 £969,035 -£990 -0.10% 172 171 1 0.58% £42,907 £37,900 £5,007 £125,028 £125,528

100331 2052350 Kenmont Primary School £1,125,214 £1,102,463 £22,751 2.06% 207 201 6 2.99% £18,000 £23,200 -£5,200 £115,200 £124,152

100332 2052367 Langford Primary School £1,190,343 £1,350,083 -£159,740 -11.83% 203 231 -28 -12.12% £80,858 £85,867 -£5,009 £90,387 £124,152

100333 2052383 Lena Gardens Primary School £1,064,320 £1,086,304 -£21,984 -2.02% 183 183 0 0.00% £23,419 £46,400 -£22,981 £96,000 £111,308

100334 2052408 Melcombe Primary School £1,682,950 £1,711,220 -£28,270 -1.65% 311 310 1 0.32% £87,060 £86,600 £460 £185,931 £205,693

100335 2052444 OLD OAK PRIMARY SCHOOL £2,011,062 £1,862,854 £148,208 7.96% 356 324 32 9.88% £42,280 £50,300 -£8,020 £171,135 £210,869

100337 2052484 QUEEN'S MANOR PRIMARY SCHOOL £908,106 £1,018,029 -£109,923 -10.80% 167 186 -19 -10.22% £345,753 £424,314 -£78,561 £105,291 £95,281

100338 2052555 Sir John Lillie £2,170,762 £2,264,492 -£93,729 -4.14% 395 408 -13 -3.19% £48,373 £38,200 £10,173 £146,268 £256,865

100339 2052577 SULIVAN PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,482,133 £1,409,246 £72,887 5.17% 272 252 20 7.94% £58,255 £61,600 -£3,345 £91,596 £121,566

100340 2052632 WENDELL PARK PRIMARY SCHOOL £2,204,802 £2,232,549 -£27,746 -1.24% 420 420 0 0.00% £59,049 £47,400 £11,649 £180,480 £222,617

100341 2052660 WORMHOLT PARK SCHOOL £2,305,184 £2,330,070 -£24,886 -1.07% 407 408 -1 -0.25% £130,910 £139,000 -£8,090 £99,840 £71,535

100343 2052913 Greenside Primary School £1,031,137 £1,064,482 -£33,344 -3.13% 195 201 -6 -2.99% £36,099 £28,400 £7,699 £92,160 £107,027

100344 2053300 ALL SAINTS C.E. PRIMARY SCHOOL £910,868 £904,568 £6,300 0.70% 205 201 4 1.99% £70,153 £71,100 -£947 £99,840 £111,308

100345 2053354 HOLY CROSS RC PRIMARY £1,772,018 £1,443,519 £328,499 22.76% 384 309 75 24.27% £39,490 £38,700 £790 £115,200 £128,433

100346 2053368 John Betts Primary School £1,160,503 £1,121,054 £39,449 3.52% 237 233 4 1.72% £76,524 £42,000 £34,524 £0 £0

100347 2053378 ST AUGUSTINE'S PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,033,548 £1,021,241 £12,307 1.21% 205 204 1 0.49% £123,240 £79,700 £43,540 £0 £0

100349 2053463 S. Johns Walham Green CE £1,526,499 £1,395,324 £131,175 9.40% 317 289 28 9.69% £44,750 £51,100 -£6,350 £71,214 £111,308

100350 2053529 ST MARY'S PRIMARY SCHOOL £1,064,806 £1,059,537 £5,269 0.50% 206 205 1 0.49% £34,814 £29,200 £5,614 £99,840 £107,027

100351 2053566 St Paul's CE Primary School £1,093,246 £1,063,241 £30,005 2.82% 199 194 5 2.58% £81,628 £59,200 £22,428 £90,400 £111,469

100352 2053578 St Peters C .E. Primary School £1,009,440 £1,005,413 £4,027 0.40% 200 206 -6 -2.91% £6,000 £6,000 £0 £89,931 £108,124

100353 2053600 St. Stephen's CE JMI £1,279,491 £1,178,445 £101,046 8.57% 264 236 28 11.86% £58,056 £34,300 £23,756 £99,840 £111,308

100354 2053602 The Good Shepherd £1,172,188 £1,196,011 -£23,823 -1.99% 234 235 -1 -0.43% £30,696 £30,700 -£4 £80,640 £111,308

100355 2053645 Pope John Catholic Primary School £1,294,343 £1,291,848 £2,495 0.19% 241 241 0 0.00% £100,855 £66,900 £33,955 £76,692 £98,465

100357 2053648 St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic Primary School £1,737,093 £1,722,590 £14,504 0.84% 339 334 5 1.50% £43,486 £43,500 -£14 £111,360 £119,871

134009 2053649 Larmenier and Sacred Heart £1,926,563 £1,933,979 -£7,416 -0.38% 420 423 -3 -0.71% £106,498 £86,100 £20,398 £150,645 £119,478

134273 2053650 NORMAND CROFT COMMUNITY SCHOOL £1,620,724 £1,593,985 £26,739 1.68% 192 185 7 3.78% £70,423 £82,100 -£11,677 £722,628 £700,632

138680 2052045 Bentworth Primary Academy £1,149,986 £1,146,725 £3,261 0.28% 194 195 -1 -0.51% £0 £20,800 -£20,800 £65,736 £70,489

100325 2052089 Canberra Primary School (Ark Swift) £2,147,995 £2,283,795 -£135,800 -5.95% 364 390 -26 -6.67% £22,146 £22,200 -£54 £142,080 £158,400

100358 2054106 Fulham Boys College £2,857,195 £3,021,689 -£164,494 -5.44% 369 396 -27 -6.82% £126,176 £70,800 £55,376

100359 2054314 Phoenix High School £6,670,106 £6,834,456 -£164,350 -2.40% 850 862 -12 -1.39% £50,187 £29,600 £20,587

100360 2054315 Fulham Cross Girls' School & Languages College £4,668,515 £4,652,084 £16,430 0.35% 624 628 -4 -0.64% £92,729 £39,200 £53,529

100361 2054319 Hurlingham and Chelsea School £4,018,642 £4,375,482 -£356,840 -8.16% 531 578 -47 -8.13% £53,147 £28,600 £24,547

137935 2054620 Sacred Heart High School £5,015,423 £4,868,672 £146,752 3.01% 815 818 -3 -0.37% £35,533 £17,400 £18,133

138607 2054632 LADY MARGARET SCHOOL £3,155,138 £3,091,852 £63,286 2.05% 505 509 -4 -0.79% £45,259 £42,700 £2,559

137157 2055400 The London Oratory School £5,673,977 £5,493,589 £180,388 3.28% 986 989 -3 -0.30% £131,814 £98,800 £33,014

0 0 William Morris Sixth Form £706,610 £706,610 £0 £147,171 £140,200 £6,971

0 0 Burlington Danes £0 £0 £0 £134,755 £109,700 £25,055

0 Bridge Academy £0 £0 £0 £3,622,200 £3,524,873 £97,327

0 0 Hammersmith Academy £0 £0 £0 £63,452 £29,800 £33,652

0 West London Free School £0 £0 £0 £41,112 £12,700 £28,412

0 0 Queensmill School £0 £0 £0 £2,440,400 £2,201,249 £239,151

0 0 Woodlane High School £0 £0 £0 £1,317,600 £1,244,308 £73,292

0 0 Jack Tizard School £0 £0 £0 £1,752,700 £1,607,741 £144,959

0 0 Cambridge School £0 £0 £0 £1,237,300 £1,417,464 -£180,164

0 0 Fulham Enterprise College £0 £0 £0 £32,065 £0 £32,065

Queensmill Fulham College Unit £0 £0 £0 £10,200 £0 £10,200

Queensmill Fulham College Unit (Sept to March 15) £0 £0 £0 £100,000 £0 £100,000

Queensmill Fulham unit at Fulham Primary £0 £0 £0 £562,500 £0 £562,500

£0 £0 £0

Schools Block High Needs Block Early Years Block

P
a
g
e
 5

8



Appendix 3

Diff Early Years 

Funding

% Diff (due to 

change in Pupil 

Numbers and 

non payment of 

deprivation 

funding)

FTE 

2014/15

FTE 

2013/14 Diff  % Diff

Total funding 

2014/15

Total Funding 

2013/14 Diff in Funding 

-£489,467 -6.26% 1,273 1,381 -108 -7.83% £103,146,218 £103,632,409 -£486,191

£63,564 12.22% 66.60 60.00 6.60 11.00% £609,206 £524,280 £84,926

£0 0.00% 60.00 60.00 0.00 0.00% £520,080 £524,680 -£4,600

-£19,350 -1.23% 140.40 141.60 -1.20 -0.85% £1,567,806 £1,581,556 -£13,750

-£39,959 -9.17% 46.40 49.60 -3.20 -6.45% £404,433 £447,841 -£43,408

£7,913 4.30% 50.00 43.00 7.00 16.28% £2,308,650 £2,361,684 -£53,034

-£41,291 -38.58% 14.40 25.00 -10.60 -42.40% £1,168,703 £1,233,188 -£64,485

£23,207 20.40% 30.00 28.56 1.44 5.04% £2,521,151 £2,543,847 -£22,696

-£11,027 -10.30% 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00% £1,622,375 £1,747,364 -£124,989

-£2,807 -2.41% 27.40 28.00 -0.60 -2.14% £1,429,719 £1,522,098 -£92,379

-£40,864 -21.69% 36.60 44.00 -7.40 -16.82% £1,464,433 £1,947,206 -£482,772

-£500 -0.40% 31.20 37.68 -6.48 -17.20% £1,135,980 £1,132,463 £3,517

-£8,952 -7.21% 30.00 29.00 1.00 3.45% £1,258,414 £1,249,815 £8,599

-£33,765 -27.20% 19.80 29.00 -9.20 -31.72% £1,361,588 £1,560,102 -£198,514

-£15,308 -13.75% 25.00 26.00 -1.00 -3.85% £1,183,739 £1,244,012 -£60,273

-£19,762 -9.61% 47.40 48.80 -1.40 -2.87% £1,955,941 £2,003,513 -£47,572

-£39,734 -18.84% 44.00 49.80 -5.80 -11.65% £2,224,477 £2,124,023 £100,454

£10,011 10.51% 26.40 22.80 3.60 15.79% £1,359,150 £1,537,623 -£178,473

-£110,597 -43.06% 32.20 60.00 -27.80 -46.33% £2,365,403 £2,559,557 -£194,154

-£29,970 -24.65% 23.40 29.40 -6.00 -20.41% £1,631,984 £1,592,411 £39,573

-£42,137 -18.93% 47.00 52.00 -5.00 -9.62% £2,444,331 £2,502,565 -£58,234

£28,305 39.57% 26.00 38.40 -12.40 -32.29% £2,535,934 £2,540,605 -£4,671

-£14,867 -13.89% 24.00 25.00 -1.00 -4.00% £1,159,396 £1,199,909 -£40,512

-£11,468 -10.30% 26.00 26.00 0.00 0.00% £1,080,861 £1,086,976 -£6,116

-£13,233 -10.30% 30.00 30.00 0.00 0.00% £1,926,708 £1,610,652 £316,057

£0 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% £1,237,027 £1,163,054 £73,973

£0 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00% £1,156,788 £1,100,941 £55,847

-£40,094 -36.02% 15.60 26.00 -10.40 -40.00% £1,642,463 £1,557,732 £84,731

-£7,187 -6.72% 26.00 25.00 1.00 4.00% £1,199,460 £1,195,764 £3,696

-£21,069 -18.90% 10.20 26.80 -16.60 -61.94% £1,265,274 £1,233,910 £31,364

-£18,193 -16.83% 22.40 25.80 -3.40 -13.18% £1,105,371 £1,119,537 -£14,166

-£11,468 -10.30% 26.00 26.00 0.00 0.00% £1,437,387 £1,324,054 £113,333

-£30,668 -27.55% 21.00 26.00 -5.00 -19.23% £1,283,524 £1,338,019 -£54,495

-£21,773 -22.11% 16.80 23.00 -6.20 -26.96% £1,471,890 £1,457,213 £14,677

-£8,511 -7.10% 29.00 28.00 1.00 3.57% £1,891,939 £1,885,960 £5,979

£31,167 26.09% 33.00 30.00 3.00 10.00% £2,183,706 £2,139,557 £44,149

£21,996 3.14% 92.48 82.12 10.36 12.62% £2,413,775 £2,376,717 £37,058

-£4,753 -6.74% 14.40 16.80 -2.40 -14.29% £1,215,722 £1,238,014 -£22,292

-£16,320 -10.30% 37.00 37.00 0.00 0.00% £2,312,221 £2,464,396 -£152,174

£0 0.00 0.00% £2,983,371 £3,092,489 -£109,118

£6,720,293 £6,864,056 -£143,763

£4,761,244 £4,691,284 £69,959

£4,071,789 £4,404,082 -£332,293

£5,050,956 £4,886,072 £164,885

£3,200,397 £3,134,552 £65,845

£5,805,791 £5,592,389 £213,402

£853,781 £846,810 £6,971

£134,755 £109,700 £25,055

£3,622,200 £3,524,873 £97,327

£63,452 £29,800 £33,652

£41,112 £12,700 £28,412

£2,440,400 £2,201,249 £239,151

£1,317,600 £1,244,308 £73,292

£1,752,700 £1,607,741 £144,959

£1,237,300 £1,417,464 -£180,164

£32,065 £0 £32,065

£0

£0

£0

P
a
g
e
 5

9



Appendix 4

Nursery School Rates

10 15 23 25 27 33

2,660 3,990 6,118 7,606 7,181 8,777 

Total Basic 

Funding

Other 

Funding

Grand 

Total Basic 

Funding

Total 

Deprivatio

n Funding

Grand 

Total 

Funding 

2014/15

Compare 

Funding 

2013/14

Diff due to 

Pupil 

Numbers

Bayonne 0 43,887 0 456,360 0 0 500,247 12,670 512,917 70,727 583,644 520,080 63,564

James Lee 0 0 0 456,360 0 0 456,360 456,360 63,720 520,080 520,080 0

Randolph Beresford 29,258 19,949 0 1,011,598 0 0 1,060,804 350,000 1,410,804 149,102 1,559,907 1,579,165 -19,259 

Vanessa 0 235,392 0 83,666 0 0 319,058 27,459 346,517 49,265 395,782 435,741 -39,959 

31,918 303,217 6,118 2,015,590 7,181 8,777 2,336,469 2,726,598 332,814 3,059,413 3,055,066 4,346

10 15 23 25 27 33

Total Basic 

Funding

Other 

Funding

Grand 

Total Basic 

Funding

Grand 

Total 

Funding 

2014/15

Compare 

Funding 

2013/14

Diff due to 

Deprivatio

n Funding  

not paid in 

2014/15

Nursery Classes Rates 1,357 2,739 3,120 3,840 3,985 4,871 0 0 0 

Addison 0 0 0 192,000 0 0 192,000 192,000 192,000 184,087 7,913

All Saints 0 0 0 99,840 0 0 99,840 99,840 99,840 111,308 -11,468 

ARK Conway Primary* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ARK Bentworth* 0 65,736 0 0 0 0 65,736 65,736 65,736 70,489 -4,753 

ARK Swift* 0 0 0 142,080 0 0 142,080 142,080 142,080 158,400 -16,320 

Avonmore 0 65,736 0 0 0 0 65,736 65,736 65,736 107,027 -41,291 

Brackenbury 0 136,950 0 0 0 0 136,950 136,950 136,950 113,743 23,208

Flora Gardens 0 52,041 0 61,440 0 0 113,481 113,481 113,481 116,288 -2,807 

Fulham 0 43,824 0 103,680 0 0 147,504 147,504 147,504 188,368 -40,864 

Good Shepherd 0 0 0 80,640 0 0 80,640 80,640 80,640 111,308 -30,668 

Greenside 0 0 0 92,160 0 0 92,160 92,160 92,160 107,027 -14,867 

Holy Cross 0 0 0 115,200 0 0 115,200 115,200 115,200 128,433 -13,233 

John Betts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Kenmont 0 0 0 115,200 0 0 115,200 115,200 115,200 124,152 -8,952 

Langford 0 90,387 0 0 0 0 90,387 90,387 90,387 124,152 -33,764 

Larmenier & SH 0 150,645 0 0 0 0 150,645 150,645 150,645 119,478 31,168

Lena Gardens 0 0 0 96,000 0 0 96,000 96,000 96,000 111,308 -15,308 

Melcombe 0 24,651 0 161,280 0 0 185,931 185,931 185,931 205,693 -19,762 

Miles Coverdale 0 0 0 96,000 0 0 96,000 96,000 96,000 107,027 -11,027 

New Kings 0 32,868 0 92,160 0 0 125,028 125,028 125,028 125,528 -500 

Normand Croft 0 49,302 12,481 0 310,846 0 372,628 350,000 722,628 722,628 700,632 21,997

Old Oak 0 13,695 0 157,440 0 0 171,135 171,135 171,135 210,870 -39,735 

Pope John 0 76,692 0 0 0 0 76,692 76,692 76,692 98,465 -21,773 

Queens Manor 0 24,651 0 80,640 0 0 105,291 105,291 105,291 95,281 10,011

Sir John Lillie 0 142,428 0 3,840 0 0 146,268 146,268 146,268 256,865 -110,597 

St Augustines (H&F) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

St Johns 0 71,214 0 0 0 0 71,214 71,214 71,214 111,309 -40,095 

St Marys (H&F) 0 0 0 99,840 0 0 99,840 99,840 99,840 107,027 -7,187 

St Pauls 0 46,563 0 0 0 43,837 90,400 90,400 90,400 111,470 -21,070 

St Peters 0 24,651 0 65,280 0 0 89,931 89,931 89,931 108,124 -18,193 

St Stephens (H&F) 0 0 0 99,840 0 0 99,840 99,840 99,840 111,308 -11,468 

St Thomas (H&F) 0 0 0 111,360 0 0 111,360 111,360 111,360 119,871 -8,511 

Sulivan 0 10,956 0 80,640 0 0 91,596 91,596 91,596 121,566 -29,970 

Wendell Park 0 0 0 180,480 0 0 180,480 180,480 180,480 222,617 -42,137 

WLFS Primary* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Wormholt Park 0 0 0 99,840 0 0 99,840 99,840 99,840 71,535 28,305

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Jack Tizard 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Queensmill 0 8,217 0 0 0 0 8,217 8,217 0 0

Total 1,357 1,133,948 15,601 2,430,720 314,831 48,708 3,925,252 350,000 4,275,252 4,267,035 4,760,756 -493,721 

 Appendix 4 - Nursery Schools and Classes Budgets 2014/15

P
a
g
e
 6

0



Appendix 5

URN LAESTAB School Name

Provisional Nos of 

Pupil Eligible for Pupil 

Premium

ProvisionalPupil 

Premium  @ £1300 

per pupil for Primary

ProvisionalPupil 

Premium  @ 

£935 per pupil for 

Secondary

Grand Total 

Provisional Pupil 

Premium 

Funding 

2014/15

Total>   7,599 5,790,850 2,939,173 8,730,023

100321 2052002 ADDISON PRIMARY SCHOOL 207 269,100 269,100

100322 2052026 AVONMORE PRIMARY SCHOOL 89 115,700 115,700

100324 2052061 BRACKENBURY PRIMARY SCHOOL 176 228,800 228,800

100326 2052134 Miles Coverdale Primary School 132 171,600 171,600

100328 2052223 Flora Gardens School 166 215,800 215,800

100329 2052286 FULHAM PRIMARY SCHOOL 157 204,100 204,100

100330 2052309 New King's Primary School 104 135,200 135,200

100331 2052350 Kenmont Primary School 81 105,300 105,300

100332 2052367 Langford Primary School 168 218,400 218,400

100333 2052383 Lena Gardens Primary School 139 180,700 180,700

100334 2052408 Melcombe Primary School 188 244,400 244,400

100335 2052444 OLD OAK PRIMARY SCHOOL 201 261,300 261,300

100337 2052484 QUEEN'S MANOR PRIMARY SCHOOL 99 128,700 128,700

100338 2052555 Sir John Lillie 278 361,400 361,400

100339 2052577 SULIVAN PRIMARY SCHOOL 144 187,200 187,200

100340 2052632 WENDELL PARK PRIMARY SCHOOL 233 302,900 302,900

100341 2052660 WORMHOLT PARK SCHOOL 264 343,200 343,200

100343 2052913 Greenside Primary School 76 98,800 98,800

100344 2053300 ALL SAINTS C.E. PRIMARY SCHOOL 23 29,900 29,900

100345 2053354 HOLY CROSS RC PRIMARY 69 89,700 89,700

100346 2053368 John Betts Primary School 46 59,800 59,800

100347 2053378 ST AUGUSTINE'S PRIMARY SCHOOL 68 88,400 88,400

100349 2053463 S. Johns Walham Green CE 85 110,500 110,500

100350 2053529 ST MARY'S PRIMARY SCHOOL 70 91,000 91,000

100351 2053566 St Paul's CE Primary School 111 144,300 144,300

100352 2053578 St Peters C .E. Primary School 48 62,400 62,400

100353 2053600 St. Stephen's CE JMI 50 65,000 65,000

100354 2053602 The Good Shepherd 71 92,300 92,300

100355 2053645 Pope John Catholic Primary School 112 145,600 145,600

100357 2053648

St Thomas of Canterbury Catholic Primary 

School 150 194,350 194,350

134009 2053649 Larmenier and Sacred Heart 66 85,800 85,800

134273 2053650

NORMAND CROFT COMMUNITY 

SCHOOL 124 161,200 161,200

138680 2052045 Bentworth Primary Academy 121 157,300 157,300

100325 2052089 Canberra Primary School 260 338,000 338,000

100358 2054106 Fulham Boys College 252 235,620 235,620

100359 2054314 Phoenix High School 646 604,010 604,010

100360 2054315

Fulham Cross Girls' School & Languages 

College 423 395,505 395,505

100361 2054319 Hurlingham and Chelsea School 375 350,625 350,625

137935 2054620 Sacred Heart High School 124 115,940 115,940

138607 2054632 LADY MARGARET SCHOOL 123 115,005 115,005

137157 2055400 The London Oratory School 86 80,410 80,410

0 0 William Morris Sixth Form 0 0 0

0 0 Burlington Danes 594 554,923 554,923

0 Bridge Academy 113 105,655 105,655

0 0 Hammersmith Academy 153 143,055 143,055

0 West London Free School 97 90,695 90,695

0 0 Queensmill School 73 71,500 16,830 88,330

0 0 Woodlane High School 65 60,775 60,775

0 0 Jack Tizard School 44 31,200 18,700 49,900

0 0 Cambridge School 55 51,425 51,425

Appendix 5 - Provisional Pupil Premium Funding 2014/15

P
a
g
e
 6

1



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

SCHOOLS FORUM – 25 MARCH 2014 
 

UPDATE ON THE 2 YEAR OLD PROGRAMME EXPANSION  

 

Open Report 

Classification:  For Information 
 

Key Decision: no 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: Andrew Christie, Tri-borough Executive Director of 
Children's Services 
 

Report Author: Jacqueline Devine 
Commissioner, Children and Early Years 

Contact officer: Jacqueline Devine: 
Jacqueline.devine@rbkc.gov.uk  

Tel: 020 7938 8512 

 

 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The 2 year old programme is a targeted offer aimed at improving the 

attainment and life chances of some of the most disadvantaged children 
and supporting low income working parents.  From 1 September, 2013, 
20% of 2-year-olds nationally are eligible for funded early learning places, 
rising to 40% by September 14.  The expansion of the programme 
(previously a pilot) is managed by a tri-borough steering group and this 
paper provides an update on the progress of the expansion in 
Hammersmith and Fulham. 

 
2. 13/14 Projected Spend and Current Place Capacity 
 
2.1 Table 1 below shows the final spend for 13/14 against the funding 

allocation within the DSG. 
 

Table 1:  13/14 Projected Spend on the 2 Year Old Programme 
 

Borough 13/14 
statutory 

place funding 

13/14  
Trajectory 
funding 

13/14 Spend Remaining 
Budget 

LBHF 2,027,028 795,756 550,000 2,272,784 

RBKC 1,068,789 419,578 554,000 934,367 

WCC 2,262,519 888,204 928,000 2,222,723 

 
2.2 The trajectory funding allocations have not been required as there has 

been sufficient funding to capacity build from the statutory place funding.  
There has been limited spend on SEN support across the tri-borough but 

Agenda Item 5

Page 62



 

 

 

 

this may increase in 14/15 once the criteria expands so that all SEN 
children are eligible.  Training expenditure has been met from existing 
training budgets. 

 
2.3 A proportion of the remaining budget will be capitalised once the needs of 

schools who may wish to participate in the programme have been 
assessed.  The residual funding will also provide start up packages for 
schools (including the nursery schools already participating) and details on 
this support will be circulated to schools shortly.   

 
2.4 The DfE announced in December 13 that additional funding would be 

available to London LAs.  The additional funding (£187,549 for LBHF) should 
be focussed on expanding the provision for two, three and four-year olds, 
with particular attention on increasing the number of providers that offer 
provision for disadvantaged two-year olds by using other spaces more 
efficiently.   LAs are encouraged to use the funding innovatively to: 

§ Support school nurseries to offer full time education and childcare 
from 8am to 6pm, rather than the current 9am to 3pm that most 
provide; 

• Match-fund private sector and voluntary providers to expand and 
take advantage of new planning freedoms; and 

• Enable parents to take their free 15 hours of early education for 
two, three and four-year olds at the times that they need them. 

 The funding will be rolled forward to 14/15 to support place capacity and 
the Tri-borough steering group will formulate local criteria for how this 
funding will be used. 

 
3. Funding Allocations for 14/15 

 
3.1 Table 2 below shows the allocations for 14/15.  Funding for Summer 14 is 

based on the current data release of eligible families for Spring 14 and 
funding for the Autumn 14 and Spring 15 terms is based on the DfE 
projections of eligible families who will meet the expanded criteria. 

 
Table 2:  Funding Allocations for 14/15 

 

Borough Summer 14 
statutory 
place funding 

Autumn 14 
and Spring 
15 statutory 
place funding 

Trajectory 
funding 

Total 

LBHF 546,202 1,704,426 264,423 2,515,501 

RBKC 299,083 930,737 144,393 1,374,213 

WCC 614,333 2,046,235 317,451 2,978,019 

 
4. Meeting Demand from September 14 

 
4.1 The DfE has published the estimated number of families who will be eligible 

under the September 14 criteria along with the funding allocations.  Table 3 
shows the projected numbers against current place capacity and the 
number of places required to meet this target. 

 
 

Page 63



 

 

 

 

 Table 3:  Estimated No. of Families and Places Required for 
September 14 

 

Borough Current no. 
of families 
who meet 
the Sept 13 
criteria 

Estimated no. 
of families 

who will meet 
the Sept 14 
criteria 

Current no. of places 
available  (including 
those starting in 
Summer 14 and 
those occupied by 
children who have 
now turned 3 year) 

Additional 
places 
required 

LBHF 473 738 375 363 

RBKC 259 403 300 103 

WCC 452 886 387 499 

 
4.2 As the table demonstrates there is significant growth required for H&F.  The 

scope to develop more places in the PVI sector is close to saturation point in 
H&F as the current funding rate is a barrier to those currently not 
participating.   

 
4.3 Although some boroughs are introducing the Sept 14 criteria now or in the 

Summer 14 term, which is being encouraged by the DfE, this is only taking 
place in LAs where they have significant spare capacity and therefore the 
tri-borough will not be introducing the expanded criteria before September 
14.   

 
4.4 Place creation in LBHF and WCC will need to focus on the schools sector and 

an audit of spare capacity in school nursery classes has been conducted.  
Promotion of the programme has featured in recent schools bulletins and 
the tri-borough is receiving consultancy support from Family and Childcare 
Trust to support schools in delivering the offer.  Schools in area of potential 
high demand have been contacted this month and the consultant is setting 
up appointments to meet with interested schools.  Family and Childcare 
Trust are hosting a pan-London event for Schools on 2nd April (for places 
contact info@familyandchildcaretrust.org or on 020 7940 7510).  An update 
on progress with schools will be provided for the next schools forum 
meeting. registration. 

 
5.  Identified Risks up to September 2014: 
 
 Insufficient Number of Places  
 
5.1   This remains an issue for LBHF although significant capacity building has 

occurred over the last six months.  Delivering places through schools will be 
a key focus in the next few months.   

 
5.2 There is also scope for schools to take eligible rising 3s.  This could help to 

free up PVI places for younger eligible children and ensure we don’t have a 
sliding drop in places for new children as the academic year 
progresses.  However, it would not be good childcare practice to move 
children who have accessed a place at a PVI setting once eligible, move to a 
maintained nursery place and then possibly again if they need to access a 
reception place elsewhere.  Therefore this option may only appeal to 

Page 64



 

 

 

 

parents who are confident they will meet the admission criteria for a 
reception place. 

 
 Impact of benefits cap  
 
5.3   It is unclear at this stage whether the current level of eligible families have 

been reduced, as current data release figures are lower than the original 
DfE estimates, and whether this downward trend will continue.   

 
 

Page 65



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 

SCHOOLS FORUM 25th MARCH 2014 

 

FREE SCHOOL MEALS – KEY STAGE 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1.0 Background 

1.1 Every child in reception, year 1 and year 2 in state-funded schools will 
receive a free school lunch from September 2014, Deputy Prime 

Minister Nick Clegg has announced. 

1.2 The government will fund schools in England to provide every child in 

reception, year 1 and year 2 with a hot, nutritious meal at lunch time. 
The aim is to improve academic attainment and save families money – 

over the course of a year the average family spends £437 on school 

lunches per child. 

1.3 Universal free school meals for primary school pupils were a key 

recommendation in a recent review of school food produced 

independently for the Department for Education. The review found 
that, in pilots where all children have been given a free school dinner, 

students were academically months ahead of their peers elsewhere and 
more likely to eat vegetables at lunchtime instead of less healthy food 

like crisps. 

1.4 At the same time, the government will extend free school meals to 

disadvantaged students in further education and sixth form colleges. 

Free school meals are currently available only for eligible students at 

school sixth forms. 

 
2.0 London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

 

2.1 The total pupil numbers identified in the October 2013 census for 

reception, Year 1 and Year 2 is 2,478. The current level of Free School 

Meals in the borough is 26% (628 pupils). These pupils are currently 

funded through the current Dedicated School Grant allocation.  

 

This report provides an update on the expansion of Free School Meals for 

every child in maintained reception, Year 1 and Year 2 classes. 

 

 

 

      FOR COMMENT 

Agenda Item 6

Page 66



2.2 The estimated additional funding required to provide the universal offer 

based on a academic year of 191 days and a daily meal charge of 

£2.30 is £813k (1,850 pupils X 191 days X £2.30). This is based on 

full participation; the DfE will adjust funding to reflect actual 

participation. 

2.3 The funding of £2.30 per meal is lower than the £2.52 which is the 

current cost for the provision of a meal. The Dedicated Schools Grant 

would need to absorb these pressures. Officers are currently working 

through the implications on funding and will report back to the next 

meeting of the forum following discussions with the DfE.   

 

2.4 The tri borough is currently reviewing the current school meal service 

to develop a tri borough school meals contract. The expectation is that 

a single contract would allow economies of scale for a service across 

three boroughs within a small geographical area while driving up the 

standard of school meals. The aim of the tri borough contract is to 

maintain quality and nutritional standards, whilst achieving improved 

value for money from the service. 
 

2.5 The borough has received a capital allocation of £336k, for investment 
in school kitchens to address any issues from the expected increased 

demand on meals.   

 

2.6  At the fair funding conference in November 2013, the DfE were alert 
to the risk that in 2015/16 the flow of pupil premium to primary 

schools could be adversely impacted by the changes in pupil 
entitlement and there was a commitment that overall the level of 

funding would not be reduced. However, DfE officials could not offer 

any specific guarantee for the sake of those schools who have a 
significant proportion of their budget now funded through pupil 

premium allocations 

 

 
  
 
 

Andrew Tagg 

 

Head of Resources – Children’s Services 

 
 

Officer contacts 

Andrew Tagg       

Head of Resources 

Andrew.Tagg@rbkc.gov.uk  

020 7361 2258 
 
 

 

Page 67



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 

 

SCHOOLS FORUM 25th MARCH 2014 

 

SCHOOL AUDIT PROGRAMME 

 

This report details the audit programme for 2014/15.  
 

 

        FOR INFORMATION 

 

 
1. Background 

 

1.1 The Schools Audit Strategy consists of a three-year rolling 

programme to audit all schools during this period.  

 

1.2 As part of the 2012/13 internal audit plan, a comparison was made 

between the schools audit test programmes used by LBHF, RBKC 

and WCC. This comparison was used to assist in developing, with 

client senior management, a consistent test programme across tri-

borough schools. A new test programme has been developed and 

has been implemented at RBKC in 2013/14. The new test 

programme will also be adopted by LBHF and WCC during 2013/14 

 

2 Findings of School Audit Visits 

 

2.1 Internal Audit has identified a summary of the High Priority areas 

as a result of recent audits. The high priority recommendations 

raised covered the following main themes: 

 

• Quotes and tenders not being obtained for high value 

purchases and the market not being tested periodically for 

long standing contracts. In addition, approval of the 

Governing Body was not always documented for high value 

purchases; 

• CRB checks being applied for, but not being received 

before the individual started work; 

• Risk management not being discussed or reviewed by the 

Governing Body; 

• Inappropriate expense claims or unauthorised claims; and 

• An inadequate separation of duties between income 

collection and banking. 

2.2 In addition to the high priority recommendations, the following 

Agenda Item 7

Page 68



recurring issues were identified across a number of schools 

visited during the year: 

 

• No evidence of Governing Body approval of key documents 

such as the School Development Plan and School Financial 

Procedures.  

• Official purchase orders not being raised.  

• Declarations of pecuniary interests not being completed by 

all governors and staff with financial decision making 

responsibilities. 

• All assets not being included on the asset register and 

valuable portable assets not being security marked. 

• Asset Register checks not being undertaken on an annual 

basis or the results not being presented to the Governing 

Body.  

2.3 The Tri-borough Director of Finance and Resources has agreed to 
research and consider innovative examples of where schools had 

successfully encouraged improvement in aspects of their 
performance. The results of this would be circulated to all schools. 

Furthermore, staff and school governors will be offered training, as 

appropriate. 

3.0     Audit Plan 

 

3.1 In accordance with the three year rolling programme the 
following schools are scheduled for a Audit in 2014/15. 

 

Hammersmith and 
Fulham: 

 

Randolph Beresford  Early Years Centre 

Addison Primary 

Flora Gardens Primary 

Langford Primary 

Melcombe Primary 

Normand Croft Community 

School  

Early Years and Primary 

Queens Manor Primary 

Sulivan Primary 

Wormholt Park Primary 

The Good Shepherd RC Primary 

Holy Cross RC Primary 

St.John’s C of E Walham 

Green 

Primary 

St.Peter’s C of E Primary 

Jack Tizard Secondary 

Page 69



 

 

3.2 The Director of Finance reserves the right to request a Audit of 

any maintained school. 

 

3.3  Please find attached at Appendix A guidance to provide schools 
with information on the coverage of internal audit visits. Please note 
that this is only intended as a guide to the standard audit coverage and 
other information may be requested during the audit visit. This guidance 
should also be viewed only as a guide to the coverage and the controls 
we would expect to see. This is not necessarily a comprehensive or 
prescriptive list of the controls required in each area. 

 
 
 
 

Dave McNamara 

Tri Borough Director of Finance 
 

 
 

Contact officers: 

 

Dave Mcnamara 
Tel: 020 8753 3404   E-mail: dave.mcnamara@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



          Appendix A 
 
 
 

1. Governance 

1.1. Instrument of Government 

1.1.1. A signed instrument of Government is in place which is in line with the current 

list of School governors. 

1.1.2. Vacancies and action taken to recruit new governors is reported and recorded 

in the Governing Body meeting minutes. 

1.1.3. Chairs of the Governing Body and Finance Committee are separate individuals. 

1.2. Meeting minutes 

1.2.1. Governing Body and Committee meetings are held in line with their terms of 

reference. 

1.2.2. Timings of meetings are reasonable taking into account financial deadlines 

such as setting the budget. 

1.2.3. Meeting minutes are signed as an accurate record by the chair at the following 

meeting. 

1.2.4. The majority of meetings are quorate. Where meetings are not quorate, 

decisions are deferred until the meeting is reconvened. 

1.2.5. Governing Body meeting minutes demonstrate regular updates being provided 

by Committees. Appropriate information concerning developments within the 

financial environment should be provided to Governors. 

1.2.6. Declarations of interest are a standing agenda item in Governing Body and 

Finance Committee agendas. 

1.3. Induction 

1.3.1. Governors are provided with adequate guidance and their roles and 

responsibilities are explained. 

1.3.2. All governors are provided with regular training and there is sufficient 

budgetary allowance for Governor training (where this is not provided free of 

charge by the Local Authority). 

1.3.3. A periodic skills audit is carried out to assess the skills of the Governing Body, 

and any gaps are addressed. 

1.4. Committees 

1.4.1. A terms of reference is held for each committee, defining the responsibilities 

delegated to the committee, financial authorisation limits, quorum and 

frequency of meetings. 

  

Page 71



1.5. Scheme of Delegation 

1.5.1. The scheme of delegation includes the roles and responsibilities of the 

governors, committees, head teacher and other relevant members of staff in 

relation to financial decision making and administration. 

1.5.2. Financial limits are specified and are reasonable for the size of the school. 

Financial limits may also be defined in a financial policy or similar document. 

1.6. Governing Body Approval of Key Documents 

1.6.1. The following documents should be approved by the Governing Body (or 

committee where this has been delegated) on an annual basis, and this 

recorded clearly in the meeting minutes: 

• Scheme of Delegation 

• Finance policy/manual 

• School Development Plan 

• Staffing Structure 

• Annual Budget (and three year budget where one is prepared) 

• Terms of Reference for Committees 

1.7. Declaration of Interests 

1.7.1. A declaration of interests form is completed by all governors and staff with 

financial decision making responsibilities and these are reviewed annually. 

1.8. Whistleblowing Policy 

1.8.1. The School’s whistleblowing policy covers: 

• How to raise concerns 

• Independent point of disclosure 

• Guarantee of anonymity 

1.8.2. The whistleblowing policy is made available to staff. 

1.9. School Development Plan (or equivalent) 

1.9.1. The plan covers a period of at least one year and long term objectives have 

been considered when developing the plan. 

1.9.2. The School Development Plan and the budget are developed in parallel. 

1.9.3. The plan includes (where appropriate) resource allocation, targets and success 

criteria. 

1.9.4. Key objectives outlined from recent OFSTED reports are taken into account 

when setting the School Development Plan. 

 
  

Page 72



2. Financial Management 

2.1. Budget and Cash Flow Monitoring 

2.1.1. The budget is prepared in parallel with the school development plan and 

considers long term objectives. 

2.1.2. If a prior year deficit existed or a deficit budget is set, a plan is put in place to 

eliminate this and this plan should be agreed by the local authority. 

2.1.3. If the School are carrying a significant level of reserves, a plan is in place that 

defines how these reserves will be used. 

2.1.4. Any earmarked / ring-fenced funds can be identified within the budget. 

2.1.5. Budget monitoring is undertaken on a monthly basis, reviewed, and signed off 

by the head teacher. 

2.1.6. The current budget position is in line with the approved budget. The reasons 

for any variances are documented. 

2.1.7. Year-end forecasts of income and expenditure are made as part of the monthly 

budget monitoring process and remedial actions are agreed to address any 

year end budget variances.  

2.1.8. Budget holders (where budgets are delegated) are provided with regular 

updates regarding their expenditure and remaining available funding. 

2.1.9. Virements are authorised in line with the limits documented in the Scheme of 

Delegation. 

2.1.10. In addition to the budget position, the school monitors cash flow and bank 

balances are not overdrawn. 

2.2. Bank Reconciliations 

2.2.1. Bank reconciliations are undertaken between the data held on SIMS and the 

bank statement. 

2.2.2. Bank reconciliations are signed and dated by the officer conducting the 

reconciliation and a second officer (usually the School Business Manager or the 

Head Teacher). 

2.3. Unreconciled Items 

2.3.1. No long standing unreconciled items are listed (over six months). 

2.3.2. Unreconciled items listing reports should be produced as part of the bank 

reconciliation process and any remedial action to clear long standing items 

retained. 

2.4. School Financial Value Standards (SFVS) 

2.4.1. An SFVS return has been completed and the Governing Body review and 

approval of the return is documented.  The return should report on any key 

control weaknesses and should be submitted to the Local Authority by the 

required deadline (31 March 2013 for 2012/13 return, 31 March 2014 for the 

2013/14 return). 

 

  

Page 73



3. Procurement 

3.1. Purchasing and Payments 

3.1.1. Orders are raised for all purchases where costs can be determined in advance 

and these are approved in line with the authorised financial limits in the 

scheme of delegation or financial policy. Any approval by Governors should be 

documented in meeting minutes. 

3.1.2. Purchase orders should be raised whenever the cost of goods and services can 

be determined in advance. The purpose of a purchase order is to: 

• Show approval to place the order prior to contacting the supplier 

• Commit the expenditure on the system for budget monitoring purposes 

• Clearly define the goods/services being purchased for future reference 

(for example when checking goods/services received) 

3.1.3. Exceptions to raising purchase orders would include: 

• Items where the cost can only be determined on receipt of the invoice 

such as utility payments, book fair invoices and phone bills 

• Contract payments where same amount is paid to the contractor on a 

regular basis (e.g. monthly payments for photocopier leases) 

• Emergency orders such as emergency repairs and supply staff to cover 

sickness 

• Instances where payment must be made in advance such as school trips 

and subscriptions 

• Staff expense claims and reimbursements 

1.1.1. Where it is not practical to obtain authorisation from the Governing Body (or 

committee) in advance due to timing of meetings, approval from the Chair of 

the Governing Body should be obtained and then retrospective approval 

obtained from the Governing Body. 

1.1.2. Deliveries of goods and services should be checked against the original order 

and invoice, and evidenced as such before the invoice is paid.  The officer 

checking the goods/services received should be independent of the person 

responsible for the administration of orders and payments where this is 

practical. 

1.1.3. The original invoice should be signed by the authoriser (in line with the 

Scheme of Delegation), and retained on file.  Where VAT is paid, a VAT invoice 

should be retained.  

1.1.4. Invoices should be paid within the payment term (usually 30 days) and where 

any queries or disputes are raised, the relevant invoice should be annotated to 

indicate the reason for withholding the payment and the status of the 

query/disputes. 

  

Page 74



1.2. High Value Purchases and Contracts 

1.2.1. Quotes/tender requirements should be followed and evidence of this should be 

retained.   Where the cheapest quote is not selected, justification should be 

recorded. 

1.2.2. High value purchases / expenditure are approved by the Finance 

Committee/Governing Body and evidence of approval should be recorded in 

the relevant meeting minutes. 

1.2.3. Contracts are subject to the Governing Body or delegated Committee’s 

approval and evidence of the approval should be recorded in the relevant 

meeting minutes.  As part of the approval, the Governing Body (or Committee) 

must be satisfied that alternative options have been considered and that the 

selected option provides value for money. 

1.3. Payments to Self Employed Individuals 

1.3.1. Steps should be taken to verify the tax status of these individuals prior to 

making direct payments to them without deduction of tax.  This is normally 

through completion of a tax status questionnaire (available from HMRC 

website). 

  

Page 75



1.4. Advance Payments 

1.4.1. Payments to suppliers should not be made in advance except for exceptional 

circumstances.  For example, a deposit or initial down payment may be 

required or payment may be required at point of sale before goods are 

delivered if goods are purchased online.  This gives the School some 

bargaining power if goods or services provided are not to the required 

standards and to protect the School from suppliers not providing the goods or 

services paid for. (Note, this may not apply to contracts with the Council as the 

risk is reduced). 

1.5. Governing Body Review of Summary of School Expenditure 

1.5.1. The Governing Body or Finance Committee should review a summary of school 

expenditure on an annual basis to gain assurance that controls relating to the 

approval of large value purchases and seeking quotes and tenders have been 

complied with. 

This summary report should be an extract from the School Finance System 

showing total expenditure incurred in the year for each supplier. 

  

Page 76



2. Staff Expenses & Petty Cash 

2.1. Expenses 

2.1.1. The expense policy should be reviewed and approved by the Governing Body 

and should be subject to regular review.  As minimum, the policy should set 

out the types of allowable expenses, time limits for submitting claims, approval 

requirement, and the need to submit the relevant form and valid receipts. 

2.1.2. All claims should be: 

• Within the allowable expenses set out in the policy; 

• Submitted promptly within the time limits; 

• Be supported with a completed form (setting out the reason for the 

expense and signed by the claimant) and valid receipts; and 

• Be approved in line with the policy. 

2.1.3. The Governing Body or Finance Committee should review a summary of 

expense claim expenditure on an annual basis and evidence of this review 

should be recorded in the relevant meeting minutes. 

2.1.4. This summary should be a report from SIMS showing total expense claim 

expenditure per staff member (note: this information may be in the report 

produced for point 3.1.1) 

2.2. Petty Cash 

2.2.1. All claims should be: 

• Reasonable and relate to the School; 

• Submitted promptly; 

• Supported with a completed claim form (setting out the reason for the 

spend and signed by the claimant) and valid receipts;  

• Approved by an authorised officer who is independent of (and preferably 

more senior than) the claimant; and 

• Signed by the claimant to confirm receipt of the money.  

2.2.2. Petty cash reconciliations should be carried out regularly to confirm that the 

balance recorded on SIMS matches the cash held.  The reconciliation should be 

reviewed by an independent senior officer and evidence of the reconciliation.  

Both the officer completing the reconciliation and the officer reviewing should 

sign and date the reconciliation as evidence.  

2.2.3. The Governing Body or Finance Committee should review a summary of petty 

cash expenditure on an annual basis and evidence of this review should be 

recorded in the relevant meeting minutes. 

Where practical this report should show all petty cash transaction to allow the 

governing body to query large or ununusual expenditure items. 

 
  

Page 77



3. Income 

3.1. Charging Policy 

3.1.1. A charging policy should be in place and this should be approved by the 

Governing Body.   

3.2. Income 

3.2.1. All income received by the School should be recorded at the point of receipt 

(through issuing receipts or maintaining cash collection records). 

3.2.2. At the end of each day, or as soon as is practical, the total income recorded 

(as per records in 5.2.1) should be compared against the actual cash received 

by someone independent of the cash collection process.  The reconciliation and 

should be evidenced in the form of sign off.  

3.2.3. When a paying in slip is prepared for banking, the total to be banked should be 

checked against the income collection records and this check should be 

evidenced. 

3.2.4. SIMS (or equivalent) should be updated promptly with the income to facilitate 

effective bank reconciliation process. SIMS (or equivalent) should never be 

updated on the basis of the bank statement as any discrepancies will not be 

identified.  Exceptions to this may be where income is received directly into 

the bank account which will require a journal entry. 

3.2.5. Any discrepancies identified in the steps indicated above should be followed up 

promptly. 

3.2.6. There should be adequate segregation of duties.  For example, one officer 

should not be responsible for collecting, recording, carrying out daily 

reconciliation, preparing paying in slips, and recording onto SIMS (or 

equivalent). 

3.2.7. If cash is handed over from one officer to another, the total amount handed 

over should be signed off by the both officers and evidence of the hand over 

should be retained. 

3.2.8. A clear audit trail should be maintained from income collection through to 

banking. 

3.3. School Meals 

3.3.1. A school meals register should be maintained (this could be maintained on 

SIMS) and the following information should be recorded: 

• Names of pupils; 

• Income received from pupils; 

• Indication of whether the pupil receives free school meals; and  

• Current arrears/credit balance.  

3.3.2. Cases of arrears should be followed up promptly and actions taken by the 

School should be recorded. 

3.3.3. With regards to the income collection process for the school meals, the 

controls indicated under Income should be followed. 

3.3.4. The school are able to demonstrate that those in receipt of Free School Meals 

are eligible either through local checks on supporting documents or notification 

Page 78



from the Local Authority that the child is eligible. 

 

4. Payroll 

4.1. Payroll Provider 

4.1.1. Where the school does not have a payroll contract with the Local Authority, a 

contract with the payroll provider should include the following: 

• Service Specification; 

• Processing arrangements; 

• Responsibility for the production & submission of statutory returns, and 

compliance with pension requirements (opt out forms); 

• Production of payslips; 

• Authorisation arrangements for inclusion or removal from payroll; 

• Authorisation arrangements for other amendments to payroll; 

• Reporting arrangements and regularity of reporting; 

• Disaster recovery arrangements; 

• Data Protection & Security of payroll information; 

• Payment mechanism; and  

• Complaints procedure with escalation and termination rights.  

4.2. Payroll Reports 

4.2.1. Monthly payroll reports should be checked to confirm the accuracy and 

validity.  Regardless of who carries out the initial check/review, the Head 

Teacher should certify the payroll reports.  Electronic copies of payroll reports 

may be reviewed and retained but evidence of review (such as email 

confirmation) should be retained. 

4.3. Starters and Leavers 

4.3.1. For all new starters, the following documents should be retained: 

• Letter of appointment; 

• Signed Contract of Employment; 

• Evidence of qualifications (where relevant); 

• References; 

• Evidence of CRB / Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check 

• Authorised Starter Forms; 

• Evidence of right to work in the UK; and 

• Pay scale agrees to those approved for the school. 

 

 

4.3.2. All leavers should have notification made to the relevant payroll provider with 

sufficient notice to allow this to be processed prior to the leave date.  The 

notification should include details of any additions or deductions necessary 

with regards to final pay. 

4.4. Overtime Claims 

4.4.1. All overtime claims should: 

Page 79



• Have a claim form completed and signed by the claimant; and 

• Be approved by an authorised officer and the claim form signed to 

evidence the approval.  

4.4.2. The Governing Body or Finance committee should receive an annual summary 

of overtime claims paid. This report should show the total hours of overtime 

claimed by each individual to allow the governing body to query large or 

unexpected levels of overtime. 

 
 

5. Headteachers’ Pay 

5.1. Leadership pay 

5.1.1. The School’s Group Range and Individual School Ranges (ISR) for Leadership 

pay, and any retention and recruitment incentives must be made in line with 

the relevant year’s School Teacher Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD).  In 

order to demonstrate this compliance, any discussions, advice provided, the 

rationale for pay increase and approval must be recorded in the relevant 

meeting minutes.  

 
  

Page 80



6. Assets and Inventory 

6.1. Asset Inventory 

6.1.1. Record of asset (asset register/inventory) should be maintained and it should 

include the following details: 

• Date of acquisition 

• Serial number 

• Description of item 

• Location 

• Cost/estimated replacement value 

• On Loan/Disposed of. 

6.1.2. Records should be updated as and when assets are purchased or disposed of; 

6.1.3. An asset check should be carried out annually, by an officer independent of 

maintaining the register.  This check should be evidenced, and the outcome of 

the check should be reporting to the Governing Body.  Where any 

discrepancies are identified (for example if there are some assets on the 

record which cannot be physically located), these should be investigated 

promptly and also reported to the Governing Body. 

6.2. Building Maintenance Plan 

6.2.1. A building maintenance plan should be in place and this should outline the 

maintenance requirements of the school. 

6.3. Data Back Up 

6.3.1. Data held by the School should be backed up regularly. 

6.4. Security of School Site 

6.4.1. Access to the keys/access codes to the School’s premises should be restricted 

and only be given to the minimum number of staff. 

6.4.2. Access to the key to the School’s safe should be restricted and the key is 

either held securely or taken off site outside of school hours. 

6.4.3. Access to the building outside of school hours (e.g. for lettings) should be 

restricted to those areas required. 

 

 

7. Leasing 

7.1. Leasing 

7.1.1. Schools should not enter into any finance leases as these are considered to be 

borrowing.  Whilst schools may enter into operating leases, schools should not 

enter into any leasing arrangements without the approval of the Local 

Authority.  Evidence of approval must be retained.  

7.1.2. Where the School has any leasing agreements in place, any documents such 

as the leasing agreement, payment summary, balance statement, and any 

other correspondence should be retained.  

Page 81



 

8. Unofficial Funds 

8.1. Unofficial Funds 

8.1.1. Where the School has an unofficial fund(s), separate income and expenditure 

records should be maintained and supporting documents such as invoices and 

receipts should be retained.   

8.1.2. Accounts should be reconciled regularly and signed off by the officer 

completing the reconciliation.  The reconciliation should be reviewed and 

signed off by the Head Teacher.  

8.1.3. The accounts should be audited annually and audit report should be presented 

to the Governing Body.  Audit report should be retained and evidence of the 

Governing Body receiving the audited accounts should be recorded in the 

relevant meeting minutes.  For funds with turnover in excess of £20,000, the 

audit must be undertaken by a registered auditor. 

8.1.4. Unofficial Funds should be self-sufficient and balances should not be 

transferred from the School’s main budge share to subsidise the fund. 

 

Page 82


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 School organisation and investment strategy 2014
	Item 3a - HF School Organisation and Investment Strategy March 2014 FINAL

	4 School Funding Arrangements
	Item 4 - appendices 1 to 5

	5 Two year old programme update
	6 Free School Meals - Key Stage 1
	7 School Audit programme

